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Tug ToasrmasTer, Mr., Enmmet Tinley of Council Bluffs: I
think one of the greatest pleasures of many members of the
Jowa State Bar in coming to Cedar Rapids is the knowledge we
would see and hear Charley Wheeler, On the program it is
“Mr, Chas, E. Wheeler”. But to his friends who love him, he
ig ““Charley Wheeler”’,—one of the greatest lawyers lowa ever
produced, who has had ag large a part in the building of history
as any man in Iowa. I want him to tell you the story of ‘‘The
Jones County Calf Case’’.

THE JONES COUNTY CALF CASE '

Mr. Toastmaster, Ladies and Gentlemen, and Members of the
Iowa Bar: When I divided it up in that way I did not mean to
be invidious. Ifor nearly half a century I have been addressing
audiences that were sworn to remain until T got through,—I am
a little nervous about you gentlemen. 'There is the judge that
must remain. Whatever sufferings he goes through, he must
remain. Generally he is a large man with a protruding front,
and a bald head, and speaks in a deep sepulehral voiee. hen
there is the bailiff, always a small man, and old, who is not
supposed to know anything. Of course, the jury thinks that
the judge knows more than the Creator of the Universe. The
members of the bar know better. The bailiff is a silent man, or-
dinarily, with watery blue eyes, and he has for forty-five years
gone to sleep promptly when I started to tally, and protected
himself in that manner. The other twelve of my audience of
fourteen is the jury,—God bless them ! The long suffering men,—
composed of all kinds, They have availed themselves of the
opportunity of geing to sleep, and particularly after the
noon adjournment. I have taken a great deal of pleasure when
I noticed a front row juryman asleep when I was addressing
them, in going around and slapping him on the knees, and
poking his ribs.

The judge ordinarily turns his back. He sits in a swivel
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4 THE JONES COUNTY CALY CASE

chair and pretends to read a newspaper, but goes to sleep, and
when he is suddenly and rudely awakened he pretends he has
not been asleep at all.

Now, gentlemen, the Joncs County Calf Case has probably
attained more notoriety than any other case ever tried in this
State, beeauge of the small amount involved, and because of the
long litigation, and the great amount of costs, and all that sort
of thing. Of course, the suppesed English case of Jamdyee
vs. Jarndyce never did oceur except in the mind of the great
Charles Dickens, who made it iminortal.

This story that I am about to tell you deals largely with a
red-headed hero by the name of Bob Johnson, DBob, of course,
was my client or he would not be a hero. 1t is always spoken
of in the singular—ithe Jones County Calf Case, whereas, there
were in truth and in faet three separate law suits growing out of
the same facts,

The first one that occurred was what we call the Note Case,
Tt was on a note for twenty-four dollars that Bob gave—I
called him Bob—that Bob gave when he was made to believe
that he had handied the stolen ealves. That note was for twenty-
four dollars, and it was litigated about every full of the moon
for scveral years, the note bought by an innocent purchaser,
a bank. - You know, the innacent purchaser bank. Now, Dob
had found out after giving the note that it was a mistake to
have given it, that he had not handled the stolen calves at all,
go Bob refused to pay the note, and litigated it and was finally
beaten, and I think that the note cost Bob something like
$1400.00.

The next case was upon an indictment In which Bob was
charged with stealing the Foreman calves. That was begun in
Jones County where all of the parties lived, and where the
calves lived; and there was an indictment found against Bob
charging him with stealing the Foreman calves, and he hired
Colonel Preston, then a very distinguished advocate at this bar,
and we went to the mat.

First we moved to quash the indictment because of an error
in drawing and impanecling the grand jury. While that motion




THE JONES COUNTY CALF CASE e

was pending, Bob’s house was hurned. Spontaneous cowmbus-
tion! And later, and during the pendency of the indictment,
and the pendency of the motion, Bob went out one morning
and found on his horse block a rope with a hangman’s knot
in it, and attached to the rope, which was in itself somewhat
suggestive, he found a little note which read something
like this: ‘“You better withdraw your motion, and try this
case here in Jones County, or take this.”” And this note was at-
tached to the rope.

Now, by the way, along in here Bob had a barn burned.
Another case of spontaneons combustion! And Bob concluded
that he did not want to try his case in that particular connty.
I might say here that at that time therc had been recently or-
ganized in that connty an organization known as ““The Iowa
Branch of the North Missouri Anti-Horse Thief Association,’
And Bob was not a member. Now that organization wanted to
- try its machinery on something, and they fed Bob into it
They never used that machinery afterwards. It was ruined.
Bob broke the cogs, and they never used it again.

Well, finally, we were granted a change of venue, and we
went down to Cedar County to try the eriminal case. The
first indictment I should say had been quashed, but the court
had ordered the case resubmitted to another grand jury, and
there had heen a sécond indictment returned against Bob, To
make a long story short, because it is a long story, gentlemen,
and the mists of forty years have obseured it largely from my
memory, we tried Bob, Colonel Preston defending him with
consuramate ability, and Bob and I hustling the testimony and
doing chore work only. We tried it down there, and the jury
stood cleven to one for acquittal, and hung. We tried it again
and Bob was acquitted.

Then Bob began the third case of the series; it is entitled
Robert Johnson vs. X. V. Miller et al., in which Bob was the
plaintiff and seven of his neighbors were defendants who had
been most active in his prosecution. Bob sued them for dam-
ages. Now that is the case, that malicious prosceution damage
case i3 the case you hear referred ‘to ordinarily as the Jones




6 THE JONES COUNTY CALF CASE
County Calf Case. That ease lasted, together with the other
two cases, approximaiely a quarter of a century. I was tried
all over eastern lowa pretty nearly. Changes of venue were
taken, and this and that, and it was the real case of the thres.

Before I go into the story proper of the loss of the veal, I
want to say a word to you about the plaintiff, and the seven de-
fendants., They all lived in the same neighborhood in southern
Jenes County, and were all farmers, well-to-do for prairie far-
mers, and all reputable men. All of the defandants but. one
lived there.- One of the defendants, by the name of Potter,
lived then in Greene County. e had lived in Jones County,
T'hey are all dead, gentlemen, 1 used to think, of course, that the
defendants were the most wicked men that ever lived; that they
were seoundrels and outlaws and that they ought to be hung.
And I believed it so thoreughly, it was so soaked into me, that 1
believed it uniil after they were all dead. Looking backward,
I know now that, with perhaps just one single exception, the
defendants were all reputable men, and probably believed Bob
Johnson had stolen the calves,

Now, going to the real case, the last one, the case for damages,
the story in outline is something like this:

~ Bob Johnson and one of the defendants by the name of Potter

had been raised together in the State of Ohio and were friends.
They came west about the samne time and seitled in the same
neighborhood. Later Potter moved out to Greene County. In
1874, (this month, in June, 1874) Potter came down from (reene
County to buy some ealves to take them west to his place in Greene
County, and he stopped over night with his friend Bob Johnson.
ITe told Bob what his mission was down there, and said, ‘“Now,
I am going on down to Big Rock (a little ways east of there) to.
pick up some calves; and, Bob, if you can find any calves up
here that are all right, you buy them for me and when I come
back on my way home, I will take the calves that you have bought
for me.”” Dotler went on down east, down towards Big Rock.

The next day Bob and hig brother, Newt J ohnson, went up to
their little neighborhood town of Olin, in Jones County, to pur-
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ehase some hardware. Bob was going to build a house. They
went into the store kept by Coppes & Derr, merchants, and talked
about hardware in there, and finally Bob said to Coppes & Derr
that Potter had been down at his house the might before and
wanted him (Bob) to huy some calves for him, and asked Coppes
if he knew of any one that had calves for sale, and Coppes said,
no, he did not. Whereupon a stranger who was sitting in the
store came forward and said to Bob, ¢“I have got four calves
down here on the commons, down on the river bottom, that 1
would be glad to sell you.”” And Bob said, ““All right, I
have got to go down to Stanwood and price hardware, anyway,
and that is on the road and we will go down and see your
calves.” And he said, ““By the way, what is your name?’’
and the stranger said, ‘‘My name is John Smith,”” Ile picked"
an unfortunate name. And he said, ‘I am Clem Lane’s son-
indaw.”  ‘“All right,”’ Bob said, and he and Newt went out
and got on their horses, and Smith got on Lis horse there in
front of Coppes & Derr’s store, and they started down to see
Smith’s calves. They got down into the neighborhood ou the
river where the Smith calves were supposed to be running out
on the common. In those days we all let our cows run out and
" even the lawyers wore boots. They hunted them up and they
found. three of the calves that Smith said were his, but they
could not find the [onrth one. There were a good many eattle
on the river hottom, but Smith said that the fourth one was just
as good as the other three “Well,” Bob said, “‘You {ind him
and bring them and put them up in the Ifines pasture, and then
come over to my house and T will pay yow” The Hines pas-
ture was up towards Bob’s house. ‘“Well, now,’” Smith says,
T will tell you, Mr. Johnson; I would not sell you these ealves
as eheap as T have priced them to you if it was not for the fact
that T have got to have some money tomorrow morning. I am
sued.” Bob said, “‘I haven’t got money enough with me to pay
you.”’ TIIis brother, Newt, however, said that he had, and so
Bob borrowed some money from Newt and put it with his
“money and paid Smith, and Bob and Newt went on to Stanwood.

"Phe next day after that Bob got word from Potter that he was
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coming back with a little herd of calves, DPotter had been down
near Big Rock and picked up some calves, and was coming
back, and he sent word to Bob that he would meet him on a
certain bill on the highway, a hill called Porter’s hill, and if
he had any calves to bring them down. So Bob went down to
the Mines pasture and he saw three of the Smith calves—=ihere
were other cattle in the Hines pasture, but Bob saw three of
the Smith ealves, and he found a fourth calf running with them
that answered the deseription Smith had given him—and so
Le took the four ealves and drove them down to Porter’s hill
and delivered them to Potter 'When Bob got down to the Porier
hill with the Smith calves—and remember, gentlemen, that the
Smith calves were dark coloved, all of them dark—(you know
the identity of a calf makes more trouble than the question of
whether the soul is immortal or not)-—and so, when Boly got down
there to the Porter hill where Potter was with his herd of calves,
he found a man by the name of Pete Onstott there with TPotter.
ITe had lost some calves and was hunting them, and he came to-
Potter’s nerd before Bob got there with his ealves, and Pete tes-
tified for a quarter of a century, more or less, that when he got to
Potier’s herd hefore Bob got there with his durk colored calves,
that he noticed four light colored calves in Potter’s herd, pretty
good ones. Pete Onstott asked Potter where the got those four
light calves, and Potter enid that he got them from So-and-So
(the name has pow escaped me). Peter remained there talking
with Potter until Bob came. Bob delivered his four Smith ealves,
dark colored calves, to DPotter there in Pete’s presence. Totter
went on west to Greene County with his herd of calves.

About this same time a man by the name of John Foreman lost
four light colored calves—light colored now mind you— and he
looked the neighborhood over and he could not find them. And
finally he heard that Potter had been down there and picked up
a herd of calves, and so Mr. Foreman who had lost the four

light colored calves went out to Greene County and found his

four Jight colored calves in the Potier herd which Potter had
brought back from Jones County. He asked Potter where he
got those four light eolored ecalves, and Potter said that he
bought them of Bob Johuson.
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Potter and Foreman came back from Greene County to
see BBob Johmson, and Bob happened to be in Mechaniesville. I
had then (in 18%4) just exposed my prolessional sign o the
weather in Mechanicsville, and there was standing room in my
office. "'None -of the neighbors scemed to know what great
opportunitics they were missing in not eoming to my office.
But Bob Johnson, and Potter and Foreman did break info my
office through the crowd, and this was what happened: Bob
said, ‘‘Charley, (nobody ever thought of calling me anything
but Chariey} Jobn Foreman here lost four calves, and he has
gone out to Greepe County and found them in Polter’s herd,
and Potter says he got them of me, T got them of Clem
Lane’s son-in-law, named Swmith. Now, what am 1 going to do
about it “Well,”” I said, “‘Beb, {of course I thought awhile
first, and looked wise) if you have handled the Foreman calves,
why, you have got to pay for them, and then you go and jump
on Clem Lane’s son-in-law, Smith.” ““All right,”” Bob said,
“but I ain’t got the momey. I tell you, Foreman and Pot-
ter, I bought these calves of a man who approached me-to sell
them to me up in Coppes & Derr’s store in Olin, and you come
and go over there with me and they will tell you all about it,
just as I told you, that I got them of Smith, and then I will
give you my note for the calves.”” They went over there with
Bob and Coppes & Derr told them that Bob’s story was true, but
said that Smith was a stranger to them; they didn’t know who
ke was, and Bob gave his note for twenty-four dollars, six dol-
lars apiece for the four calves, and they went across the street
and had a-drizk, the three men—-(it makes me thirsty to think
of it now), Then went aeross the street and had a drink
and shook hands, and all parties went home except Bob.

Bob went across the street to a justice of the peace and filed
an information against John Smith and got a warrant and got
a constable and started out to arrest Smith,: They went down
into Clem Lane’s neighborhood and tackled Clem Lane, and
told him that Smith said he was his son-in-law, and Clem Lane
said, ‘I never had a son-in-law named Simnith,”” and from that
day to this Smith has never been found. Although Bob John-
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son tracked him, or tracked all the Smiths by the name of John,
and they were all named John, he tracked him high and low
‘over ihis State and other states, he never could find the John
that was Clem Lane’s son-in-law, or the man from whom he
honght the four dark colored calves.

Now, this Towa Branch of the North Missouri United Horse
Thief Association saw a chance to put something into their
machine that was brand new. They had never tried it. All
Boh’s neighbors substantially were membiers of this anti-horse
thief association. Bob was not. So they went to Foreman (the
‘man that loss the calves and found them in Greene County) and
they suggested to Foreman that he must join their North Mis-
souri Anti-Horse Thief Association, the Towa hraneh of it, and
help prosecute his neighbor, Bob Johnson ; and Foreman joined.

Then they wrote to Potter (the man that had the four light
colored ealves)—TForeman’s were light coleved, ail of them—they
wrote to Potter and they told him that he better had come back
to Jones County and become a member of that seleet organiza-
tion, and Totter was awlully slow in coming back. Finally,
they wrote to him that if he dida’t come back they would pros-
ccute him (Potter) for stealing Ttercman’s calves, and under
the encouraging suction of that threat Potter came baelk, joined
the organization, and they went before the grand jury and had
Bob indicted.

Up to this time Bob had believed that he had handled
the Foreman calves and had given his note, as J have told you,
for them. After he was indicted he heard that the ¥oreman
calves that Foreman found in Greene County in Potter’s herd
were lLight colored calves. So Bob and hig brother, Newt, who
was with him when he bought the dark colored calves of Smith,
took the train and went out to Greene County and into Potter’s
herd, and Bob said, ‘‘Potter, where are those four Foreman
calves?’’ And Potter pointed them out-— four light colored
calves. Bob said, ‘““Why, Potter, 1 never sold you any light
colored ealves.” “Well,”’ Potter says, ‘“‘you did.””  And then
TBob used language that,—well, it was more forcible than ele-
gant—and jumped off his horse to whip Potter, and Newt
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stopped the fight, and they came back., Then it was that Bob
found out that he bad mot handled the Foreman calves at all,
the light colored calves, and then it was that he refused to pay
his twenty-four dollar note. And T have told you what became
of that case. The innocent purchaser business worked and I3ob
-was beaten, and, as I have said, it cost him about fourteen hun-
dred dollars; and fourteen hundred dollars, gentlemen, in those
days was an enorrous amount of money.

The eriminal cases, I have told you what hecame of those.
They were tried in Cedar County, and Bob was aequitted.

During these proceedings cverybody had got so ““het up’’
in that county that they earried guns for one another. The ma-
licions prosecution case at one time, I remember, had one hundred
and thirty witnesges, I have forgotten where we tried that case
the first time. I tried to get Bob to quit. I fold him that he
had been acquitted in the eriminal case, but he always insisted,
as he said, “I want my character back!” And 1 always said,
“You got it back when you were acquitted.” And Bob said,
“No. They claim that they had reasonable and probable
cauge for having me indicted, and,”” he says, “‘I will try it with
them until 1 will convinee everybody in this country that they
had no eause whatever.”” And so we kept on in the malicious
prosecution case.

We tried that malicious prosecution case, or at least other
lawyers tried it for Bob, and he and I hustled the testimony as
long as Bob was anything but a bankrupt. He became a bank-
rupt, T might say, very carly in the game, and after he got to
where he could not hirve distinguished counsel, why, then, and
then only, T helped Bob try it, and we went on trying it for
about eightecn or twenty years after that. It went to the su-
‘preme eourt, as you sce, gentlemen, four times. The case, as I
have said, was entitled Robert Johnsom vs. E. V. Miller, ef al.,
and is, I think, one of the leading cases on the subject of mali-
cious prosecution. These four cases are reperted in 63 lowa
529, 69 Towa 562, 82 Iowa 693, and 93 Towa 165,

Now, during the time that the last indictment was pending,.
and that was during the lifetime of Colonel Preston, it was the
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same day, I think, that the court set aside the first indictment
and ordered it resubmitted and it was resubmitted and a see-
ond indietment was found, Colonel Preston, who, as it seemed to
me, used to have some misgivings as to whether Bob was guilty
or innocent, said to me, in substance: ‘‘Yow big is Bob’s
bond?’ And I told him it was f{ifteen hundred doilars. '
He said, ““Who is on it?"’ And I told him old George Fali,
Bob’s father-in-law. ‘“Well,”” he says, ‘‘now, Charley, of course
Bob is innocent, but I guess you better tell him that he better
jump his bond and leave the country.” It was a terribie shock
to me. T was filled with vinegar in place of knowledge, and I
believed just as religiously then as I believe now that Bob was
innocent, and for a great lawyer like Colonel Preston to tell
me I better teli Bob to jump his bond, was somewhat of a
shock to me. DBut I was under orders, and so that night I took
Bob out for a walk. It was in Anamosa, and we walked down
into the woods where the penitentiary now stands. It was not
there then. And after going around by Robin Hood’s barm,
I finally told Bob that the Colonel and 1, (and 1 put the
emphasis on ‘‘we’’), that we thought that he had better under
all of the circumstances, (while he was perfectly innocent, you
anderstand, perfectly innocent) that under all the eircumstances,
lLie better jump Lis bond and leave the eountry.

T shall never forget it, gentlemen, as long as my head is hot,
what otd Bob said and did, and how he loeked when I told him.
We were walking side by side. Bob stopped, and T stopped.
e took me by the shoulder, and turned me facing him, e
looked to me as bigh as the second joint of a liberty pole.
e looked like an infuriated lion, and he says, “DBoy, 1 never
stole the John Foreman calves, and, by God, I will go to the
penitentiary off my door step before I will ever jump my bend!"’
And from that day, during all the years that followed, and up
to this day, I have never doubted that he told me the truth,

We would try this malieious prosecution ecase, and we
would always get a verdiet from the jury, but the trial courts
would—you know what. Bob was a bankrupt, and had been
then for many years. e would go home and work like a nigger

'
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to get ready to try his Jones County Calf Case again. He
would raise a little money, and we would be en hand when the
"bell rang and try it over again, and then the enemy would take
it to the supreme court, and the supreme court would pick it to
pieces, and reverse it; but not so but what there was enough left
of the case to try again. There were always a fow little remnants
around somewhere, and Bob and myself could picce them to-
gether and have a new suit of clothes when the next term of
e¢ourt came.

Finally, after the lapse of a quarter of a century from
the time thal John Foreman lost his calves, we got a verdict
up here at Waterlao, (I have forgotten how much it was) but
we tried it three times up at Waterloo, and we got another ver-
dict and they appealed it to the supreme court, and it was
affirmed.

Bob was an old man, He was a middle aged man hefore John
Foreman lost his four calves—light colored calves—and when
we were through the weight of a quarter of a century had
bowed him. Ile was so many times bankrupt that I lost count.
By the time we got through his indebtedness was barred by the
gtatute of limitations. Ile came Lome to Jomnes County, where
he was first indicted, where his enemics—the defendants—Iived,
and. went to work and paid every dollar that he owed. Ile
would go to a man that he owed, and say, ‘I came to pay you.”
No, he would not say “‘eame”’, Lie would say ‘“‘come”. ‘I come
to pay you.”’ ““Why,”’ the man would say, perhaps, ‘‘why, 1
don’t remember, Mr. Johnson, that you owe me anything.”
““Yeg,”” Bob would say, ‘I owe you two dollars. 1 borrowed it
when I was trying my Jones County Calf Case, and I have never
paid it, and T want to pay it and I want to pay the interest on
it.”” Well, the man would say, *“Why, it is outlawed.”’ “Yes,
that is the reason that I am particularly anxious to pay it.”’
And the man would not charge him any interest, and old Bob
would pay.

He was then selling real estate up at Anamosa. That is a

" business that the impecunious ecan indulge in. It doesa’t take
any cash capital to begin with, Bob was doing well. Finally,
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after Lis assets were depleted, he came down to see me. In the
meantime, and during the Calf Case, he would borrow forty
‘cents of me, or one doliar, or five dollars; maybe twenty-five
‘when we were away trying his Calf Case, and of course 1 was
just as much interested as Bob was, and so it had run along
until Bob said he owed me about fifteen hundred dollars for
borrowed money, and he had been earning money and paying
bis other creditors, and we sat down on the floor as all thieves
do to divide the loaves and fishes, and Bob didn’t have any loaves
and fishes exeept a spavined stallion-—a cheap horse, and.spav-
ined— and one hundred and thirty dollars. So he handed them
over to me and said that he wounld pay me the balance as he
got it. And I said, ‘“‘Bob, I have heen a thousand times repaid.
T didn’t have any clients; I didn’t have anything to do when

- you eame to me twenty-five years ago, and 1 bave made an ac-

quaintanceship, and that has done me good, and you don’t owe
me another dellar.”” And so we shook hands and looked the
other way, and Bob went back to Anamosa.

After Bob got through house cleaning and paying up his
debts, he was clected mayor of Anamosa, the town where he had
been indicted forty years before for grand larceny, in ‘the
county where it was claimed that he had stolen the Foreman
.alves, He became mayor and, 1 believe, served two or three
terms with credit. He worked hard; he saved his money; and
when he died, sitting quictly in his chair an old, old man in
his own little home, with his wife and son present, hie had paid
for his home and had some property besides that, T don’t know
how much.

Now, there were a number of incidents that happenad during
that long litigation that were llustrative of Bob., Ile was a
queer man. Ife gave up all that he had, ineluding twenty five
years of the beqt part of his life to, as he always gaid, “*Get my
character buek.”” He always called country “‘kintry”’, and he
always said, I did so and so “‘in my weakness'’

Gentlemen, it is said that the minds of old people dwell in the
past. Mine does. And aflter forty-six vears [ want to describe
Bob Jolnson to you as he looked to me when I first saw him.
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He was as tall and straight as a lanee. Ile had long tawny hair.
(People wore their hair long in those days.) Me had a full
tawny beard. He had smiling grey eyes, Mis hair and his heard
made Bob look like a Hon, and that is whai he was., Ile was one
of those rare men whose courage mounts and grows, and mounts
with adversity, and during all those years that the trial judges
were sefting aside our verdicts, and the suprenie court was get-
ting aside our judgments, during all of those years old Bob
was just the same. He never weakened, never gave up. As T
kave said, he would say, ‘““That’s all right, Charley; that’s all
vight, I am going to have my character back,”” and he gol 1f,
And now, after nearly half a eentury, when 1 look backward
and sec a lot of shadowy forms that were onee my clients, tow-
ering head and shoulders above the shadowy formg stands one,
His name is Bob Johnsou.  Bob Johnson, whose own lawyers
could not make him jump his bond and run away. T sce him
now as I saw him when 1 was a'boy. He was one of my very
first elients. I believe i him now as I believed in him then.

You are all lawyers. There is some mystery eonneeted with
the Jones County Calf Case, Let me ask you sonie queslions,
and you chew it over when you are at leisure. Who was the
man, Smith? The other side always elaimed there wasn’t any
Smith ; that ke was a mythical Smith, and that Bob lied when he
said he hought the four dark colored calves of Smith,  They,
claimed that Lane never had any such son-in-law, and that it
was a put-up job by Bob after he got into trouble to claim that
he got the ealves of Bmith, and they always referred to him as
““the shadowy Smith”’. And before I leave that question T
want to say to you that the evidence disclosed, beyond a reason-
able doubt, that there was a Bmith; that he was unquestionably
present in Coppes & Derr’s store that day that he sold these
calves to Bob Johnson. - Bob searched the earth for him, but
he could not find him, and so our enemies always referred to him
as *‘the mythical Smnith’",

Another question, gentlemen: It is sure John Toreman’s
calves, light colored calves, were stolen. That is sure. We ad-
mitted that. - Who stole them? Not Bob J ohnsen. Not Smith,
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Because Foreman’s calves were light colored that he lost and
found out in Greene County. The Smith ecalves were dark
colored. Who stole John Foreman’s light caives?

Now, gentlemen, I am not near so rank in my opinions as I
used to be, I am not nearly so sure that I am right. There
does not seem to me to be as many liars and perjurers in the
country as I used to think there were. Who stole the Foreman
calves? Not Bob. Not Smith. Who? Was it Potter? Pot-
ter, the man that came down from Greene County; Potter, the
man that bought the 8mith calves of Johnson, who had the four
light colored calves, the Foreman calves, in his herd before
Johnson came with his calves? Was it Potter? Dob always
claimed it was. I make no claim. He is dead.

Now those questions have never heen answered in a satis-
factory way to unprejudiced people, although forty-six years
have passed. "The parties are all dead. "The lawyers pretty
nearly all dead. And, in thinking the matter over the other
day, gentlemen, I want.to call attention to some of the lawyers
who took part in the Jones County Calf Case for one side or
the other. Some of you older gentlemen will remember them.
There are a number, I should say, who took part in the different
counties where we tried the last case, eminent gentlemen, whose
names I have forgotten. There was the 1Tonorable W. A. Fos.
ter, of Chicago, formerly of Davenport, a very distinguished
advocate in those days; there was Colonel Preston. You gen-
tlemen of the old school will remember that Colonel I. M. Pres-
ton was the kind we referred to when we talked about advocates
—a real cracker-jack., Ix.Governor Boles tried the case for the
defendants in season and out of season for many years. I had
a letter from him the other day, ninety-three years old, back
from California visiting his son, the Judge, up in Waterloo.
And T want to say to you gentlemen who never heard ox-Gov-
ernor Boies try a law suit to twelve jurymen, that in my judg-
ment he was the greatest of advoeates. I never have seen his
like to a jury. Honorable N. M. Hubbard—you all know, and
have heard your fathers speak of Judge Hubbard, who died my
partner., 1 thought in those years, and I still think, that Judge
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Hubbard was the greatest combination of lawyer and advocate
that I have ever had the pleasure of listening to, Colonel
Charles A. Clark, Judge Hubbard’s parfner at one time, a most
eminent lawyer, a sure enough lawyer. He had been vaceinated
for a lawyer, and 8o had all his brothers, five of them, and every
time the vaccination worked. They were, every man-chick of
them, lawyers. Some of them were freaks, too, hut not Colonel
Charles A., a most eminent and agreeable lawyer. A, 3. Mo
Coy, of the Clinton bar, a real lawyer. Louis Boies, ex-Gov-
ernor Boles’ son, who died a number of years ago. There are
gentlemen here who knew Louis Boies and heard him try law
suits, and those of you who never heard young 1ouis Bojes try
a law suit,—your lives lack one stave of being round. 'That old
man Boies bred true, especially when he got both of those hoys,
Liouis, now dead, and the Judge now upon the beneh, They were
most agreeable men., Ifonorable M, P, Smith.  We eall him on
account of his initials, Member of Parliament Smith—N. I
saw him night before last. He is either eighty-five years old,
or a hundred and eighty-five, I don’t know which it is, but I
am here to tell you, gentlemen, that when that old eritter gots
onto the bench and pulls that lock of hair down so that he Jooks
like an infuriated huffalo, he can do a great deal of hooking.
0. C. Miller, of the Waterloo bar, once a leading lawyer up
there. Judge Crouch, of the Waterloo bar, once a leading law-
yer up there also, '

Amnother Jittle story I want to tell you-—because this is noth-
ing but a story—and that is what Boly said when the defendants
began to die. Bob was the last one of the parties, of the cight
parties, to die. I met him on the street here in Cedar Rapids
one day, and I said, ““Bob, I understand So-and-So (one of the
defendants) is dead.”’ “Yes,”” Bob said. Just 1o have fun
with Bob I said, ‘““Where do you suppose he has gone to9”’
**Oh,”” Bob says, ““I think he is in ‘helll”” ““wel,? 1 said,
““Bob, that is too bad.”’ “But,” he says, ‘T think he’s there.”?
After awhile another one died, and I had the same conversation
with Bob and he expressed the same opinion as to where he had
gone to. Buf after all of the defendants were dead T met the
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old lion on the street, then a humped over old man. “gell,
he said, “Boy,”'—he used to eall me boy; I was a boy when he
and I began slecping together. He says, “Well, Boy, the last
one of them is dead.”” 1 said, ““Yes, I heard so. Where do you
think he has gone, Bob?' ““Well,”” he says, ‘1 will tell you; 1
have changed my mind about that.”” I said, ““Iow is that?’”’
“Well,”” he says, ‘‘I don’t think any of them is in hell”
“Well,”” T satd, ‘I am glad of that, Bob. What has changed
your mind?”’ ‘“Well,’” he says, “Phere wasn’'t no necessity for
sending them to hell.  Look what I done to them!”’

And so Bob “‘got his character back’”. At the last irial up
in Waterloo, the Honorable Horace Doies was just closing, and
1 was just about to begin. 0ld Horace had made an argument
that made me eold. Ie just chilled me with the force of his
argument the whole length of my spine. Bob sat right next to
me. e gaw that Horace was going o sit down, and he leaned
over to me, and he said, ¢ Charley, tell them 1 don’t care whether
they give me a cent or a million dollars. Whet I want is my
character back!”’

And so, after his debis were all paid, and he had served in
that town twice as mayor, and so far as 1 know every one re-
spected the old lion, the lion of the Calf Case, he walked down
home one day and sat down in the kitehen with his old wife,
Mary Ann, who had attended every trial and sat by that old man
through thick and thin, he sat down in the kitehen with her,
and she bappened Lo be looking at Lim, and he drepped his head,
the frst time he ever dropped his head in his life when he was
in battle, and she went to him—he was dead. ' '

O1d Bob, the lion of the Jones County Calf Case, poace to his
ashes!

Tan TOASTMASTER: You have just listencd, my friends to
the richest story in the legal history of Towa. Throughout that
story runs a richer story, the story of the sweetest character at
the Towa bar, Charles E. Wheeler. Charley, I know the bar of
lowa thank you for your splendid effort making it possible to

place in printed form that story that our successors.may read it.




TS JONES COUNTY CALF CASE _ M

Deaw W I Vanen ol Minneapolis: In expressing o you my
vory great enjoyment from the day that [ hiave spent in Codar
Rapids in attendance upon this Bar Assoeiation, | eannot refrain
from saying that the long and vather tiresome trip Lrow Minne-
apolis, taken at a time when 1 was partieatarly husy, is one hun-
dred times vepaid by the privilege of hearing—1 should say
seeing—hefore me the herote figure of Bob Johnson, 1 win glad
to indulge the hope that the report of this meeting will put in
indelible print that rare recital, one of the most vivid word pie-
tures that T have ever heen privileged in my life to hoar, _

It was not only instinet with life and beauty, but with [ecl-
ing; and as I looked at that wouderful porirait of a real hero
I could sce behind it, with my own ey es, the portrait of another
hero, the figure of the lawyer who stood by his client through
thick and thin; a lawyer who through 1 adversity and ill suceess,
without hope of reward, stuck fast by his elient, and when finally
at the end of the long litigation he came out vietorions for his
client, he generously said that he owed im nothing,

When T place beside the portrait of this hero Iawyer of the
poneration that is passing off the stage, the picture of some of the
miserable ereatures that I know of in Minneapolls, who comb the -
country over for unhappy vietims that have lost legs or arms,
and try the eases to a jury, taking one-iaif of the pitiful bload
money, leaving the other half to the fellow that farnished the
arm or leg, I am a little afraid that the lawyer of today, at Teast
in some places, is not measuring up to the lofty figure of those
great old lawyers that, I wm sorry to say, scem to he passing
from off the stage. : . .

I say to you: AN glory to such a lawyer as Charles T,
Wheeler. 1 am proud to have heard hin. T am proud to have
sat in the same room with him.  And when I get a printed re-
port of the story, T am going to read it to my boy, and il he
grows up to be a lawyver, I want him to know something of fhe
man who lived for his elient.
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It 1s error to glve an instruction when there is no evidence to support it.
 Admissions of nn alleged conspirntor are not ndmissiblo ag evidence against his cn-tonsplratars,
unless the nonspiracy has been established or iho admissions tend {o prove it, and were wade during Lae

sxlstence of the conspiracy, and in ajd of the comman design,
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In an aciion ngainst soveral defendnnts for maliclous prosecution, svidence that ar association of
" which they were mambers caused the suit to be fastituted, and that defendants contributed moeney
lor thal purpose, i3 admissible, but to render them liable it must be shown that they sither voted in
A favor of the action of the assocmtlon. or intentlonakly aided or soniribuled money in furllerance of
the unlawiul act,

‘Whera the object of an associztion 1s stated in its constitution nnd by.laws, which are introduced in
evidence, it is for the court to determing, as a matior of law, whelher such association wns organized
for an nnlawfal purpose ¢r not, and it is error to submit that guestion to the jury.

What constitutes probakle cause lor instituting a criminal prosecution is s mixed question of law
aud fact, and in an action for malicious prosecution the court should group.the facts together in the
instrugtions which the evidonce tends to prove, and thon instract the jury if they find such facts have
been established they must @nd there was or was not probable cause.

Where parties nre instrumental In gausing a criminal action 4o be commancud without probable
cause, thoy must be held liable for its continuance.

Possession of stolen proper ty, after & larceny thereof, when unexplained, is evideuce of the guniit of
the party in whose possession it 1s found.

Where s party is tried on a criminal charge, that the jury failed to agree and were discharged, {s avi.
dence of probable cause for the mstitutinn of the acLiou.

Appeal from Black Hawle dxstuct court,

Action for malicious prosecution. It is stated in the petition the dofeud-
ants caused the plaintilf {o be indicted for the erime of grand larceny, and
ok that in 8o deing they acted maliciously, and without probable causs, and that
‘ : they conspired together for the purpose aforezaid; that said plaintiff has been
- : acquitied of said charge. Tho defendants pleaded a general denial. Trial by
; ’ wury and judgment {or the plaintiff, and defendants appeal.

: : florace Boies and Hubbard, Clark & Deacon, for appellants, €. B. Wheeler
: and Pintt & Carr, for appelilee.
; . SEEVERS, d. 1. The burden was on the plaintiff to estabiish the conspiracy
‘ charged, :md that the eriminal proceeding was commenced without probable
-cause.  The plaintiff offered evidence showing his barn and contents were
burned shortly after he was acquitied of the criminal eharge, This evidence
was objected to ag fmmaterial, but the objection was overruled and the evi-
dence admitted. There were two indicbments against the plaintiff. The first
one wag quashed, and it was generally known a motion to guash would be
made. A few days prior {o ihe convening of court, there was found, early
in the morning, near the plaintift’s residence, a letler addressed to him, with
which was a rope, The contents of the letter, as testilied to by the plaintiit,
: ware ag follows: '
- : “In view of the present indictiment we understand that you are under, we
understand that you calculated Lo have the indictient set aside. We advise
you toappear and be tried under the indictment, with the defect, if any exists,

.

. : or take the Jamented Greeley’s advice and ‘go west,’ or take this.

£ i o ¢ Wy, t1E COMMITTER
a The plaintiff offered evidence of the finding and conbents of the letter. To
n ; ) : this the defendants objected on the grounds of incompetency, and it was not
T, S shown auy of the defendants were connected with the letter. The ohjections
@ : were overruled. 'We have examined the large abstract with cave, and have
¥ g : failed to find any evidence tending to show that the burn was not accident-
1= ' ally burned, eor, if not, that any of the defendants had connection with or
- 3 - arveinany respect responsible therefor. We have wlso been unalile to find any

avidence tending to show the lefter was written by the defendants, or any of
them, or that they even had knowledge of ity existence, 'This being so, we
think the foregoing evideuace should have heen excluded, and we can readily
see and understand the defendants were greatly prejudieed by its introduction.
The defendants were imembers of an *anti-horse-thief association,” and it

is eclaimed the association directed or caused the criminal proceeding to be -
. 1 comimenced against the plaintiff, and that the defendants advised 'and directly
e sanctioned what the association did by, among other things, contributing

k) © money to aid the prosecution, Conceding this to e so, there i3 no evidence
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tending to show theassociation had anything to do with burning the barn or
writing the letter, ‘ :

The defendants asked the court o instruct tha jury to disregard the forego-
ing evidence, This was refused, and the jnry instructed they should disre-
gard it, “uniess you find there is testiviony which connects [the defendants
in some way with such acts, Mere suspicion or supposition is not suflicient.’
It is insisted by counsel for the appellee that the error in the admission of the
evidence aforesaid wus curad by the instruction given the jury. But it is
ervor to give an instruction when there is no evidenee to support i, This has
been repeatedly ruled, and we de not understand conngel to claim otherwise,

Benjumin Yont testified that, ab the term the indictment was found, one of
the defendants, but which one e was unable o state, said © that if they could
not get rid of him [plaintiff] no other way they would burn him ont.” It is
sald this evidence warranted the court in giving the instruction above stated,

The evidence is indehnite and uncertain, and we think if the delendants
were on trial for burning the barn, the evidence would have been inadmissi-
bLle against any oue of therm, because it failed to identify the defendant who
spoke the alieged words, and it would not have been admissible as evidence
against all of the defendants unless a conspiracy to burn the barn had been
established: and the rule must be the same in this case. There is 10 evidence
tending to show. a conspiracy to burn the barn.

John Hines testified he heard David Fall, one of the defendants, say, at the
term $he indictment was found: “ We will convict Johnson sure; or if we do
not convict him we will drive him out of the country.” " Who Fall included
when lie said “ we” the witness was unable to state, It is exceedingly doubi-
ful whether what Fall said is binding on any one but himself: but concede
the defendants are bound therely, we do not thinl the presumption should be
indulged the plaintiff was to be driven out of the country by the perpetration
of two serious criminal acts. It cannot be presumed that Fall intended to
accomplish the desired end Ly unlawful acts, The evidence, therefore, was
Insuflicient to connect the defendants with either the burning or writing the
letter. The court, therefore, erred in the admission of the evidence, and in
instructing the jury as above stated. ‘

2 .John Foreman is one of the defendants, and the plaintiff, when on the
stand as a witness, testified this case was twice tried in Benton county, and
that said Foreman testified on said trials, or one of them, «that they had
met this organization, had met these dafendants and the balance of them,
and they had determined to prosecute whether anybody told theum or not.”
That is, as we understand, whether or not the district attorney adviscd the
commencement of the eriminal proceeding. This evidence wus objected to
by all of the defendants except Forewan, hut the objection was overruled.
The evidence was admissible against Foreman ag an admission. It stands
upon the same fooling as an admission oub of court. But it was not binding
on the defendants unless the conspiracy had been established or the admission
tended to so prove. The admission was made by Foreman long atter the
criminal procecding was abt an end, The conviction of the plaintiff of the

“eriminal charge was tho object of the conspiracy. This had Tuiled, and the

couspiracy had ceased to exist when the object intended to e accomplished
had falled.  Coneede that Foreman and the defendants were eongpiralors, we
understand the admission of one, to be binding on the others, must be male
during the existence of the conspiracy and in aid of the common design.

In 3 Greenl. Ev. § 94, it 19 sald: » The evidencs of what was said and done
by the other conspirators must be limited to their acts and declarations wade
and done whila the conspiracy was pending, and in furtherance of the design;
what was said or doue by them before or afterwards not being within the
principle of admissibility.”” See, also, State v. Westfall, 49 Towa, 828. We
think the dourt erred in the admission of the evidence aforesaid.
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3. William Harrison, whe is not g defendant, was called as a witness for
the defendants, and in cross-examinalion was permitted to testify, against
their objection, thal he was =z member of the association, but be ame sueh
after the indictment wag found, and that he had contributed money as dues
to the association during the pendency of the indietment, This evidence wus
not elicited in reply to, or in explanation of, the evidence of the witness in
cehief, and was inadmissible because the witness was not charged with con-
spiracy; and the fact that he was a member of the association and cantributed
money in furtherance of the objects of the organization, should not prejudice
the defendants. “What the witness did bound no ene but himself. :

4, G, W. Miller, one of the defendants, was called as & witness by the plain.
tiff, and testified he wag present abt the meoting of the association, and he
thereupon was asked and answered the following questions: « Do you recollect
of a vote being faken in a meeting of that organization to prosecute Mr.
Jolmson for selling Mr. Foreman’s caivest”  “Yes; I think Ldo.” “Do you
know of money being voted for that burpese and the members assessed to
raise the money®”  “Yes, sir.” This evidence was objected to “because the
action of the organization is not that of the defendants,” but the objeetion
was overrnled.

The ussociution was not incorporated, but it may be said to be recognized
by, or formed in accordance with, a statute, (Code, § 1091.) It eannot, there-
fors, be regarded as unlawful unless organized for such a purpose.  But, if
lawfully organizeq, its powers may have been used for an unlawfu} purpoese,
The association is not a party to thisaetion, but cortain members are, and the
question is, to what extent ave the latber bound by the acts of the association p

(E As it was not incorporated, the association must be regarded as a partner-
* ship or association of persous for the accomplishment of a COmMMOon purpose,
: which, for the purpose of the argument, must be conceded to bethe prosecit-
« ton of the plaintiff on the eriminal charge. Now, if the defendants aided
| and abelted in the prosecution by the contribution of money for that special
| purpose, or otherwise, then we think they are responsible for the conge-
[ quences. If the brosecution was unlawful, they are liable! But the defend-
ants insist the evidence fails to show they, or any of them, contributed
noiey in aid of such prosecution. They say the evidence only shows they .
contributed money to the objects of the association as dues provided for in-
bhe by-luws, and that it does not appear thoy directed the money so contrib-
ubed should be used to prosecute the plaintiff. We haveexamined the whole
evidenee of Miller with care, and think, when taken all together, it i3 shown
the portion ohjected to as above was admissible, because it had some tend-
ency to show the dsfendants contriluted money for the purpose of the pros-
ecution of the plaintiff, ' But the defendants are not labla, in our opinion,
for what the association did, merely because they were members and contrib-
uted money to effectuate the commaon burpese. It must be presumed, in the
absence of any showing to the contrary, such contributions were made for
lawtul and not for unlaw ) purposes. It must be showu they either voted
in favor of the action of the association, or intentionully aided or contributed
money in furtherance of the unlawinl act.  Thach member of the associalion
is lable only for the torts and wrangs o did, or aided in doing, as above
stated. Now the mere fact the defendants contributed money to the associa.
tion, and it was expended in the prasecution of the plaintiff, is not sutlicient
unless they participated in the action of the association in making such ax-
penditare, -
" In view of a relrial, we have deemed it not improper to say this much, but
weo deen it unnecessary, and possibly improper, to say whether there is sufli-
cient evidence that the defendants participated in the action of the associz-
tion, so as to be bound thereby, becanse the evidence may not be the same on
‘&uel: retrial. For the same reason we decline to say whether, in our opinton,
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@ conspivaey has been established, or whether evidence has been introduced
which.so tends. i :

5. The court ingtrueted the jury that, © on the contrary, if you find the associ-
ation was organized foran unlawful purpose of taking the law into their own
hands outside of the civil authorities, their acls and organization are uniaw-
ful,” ete.. Theobjects of the association are stated in what is calied a conslitu-
tien and by-iaws, which were introduced in evidence. As ghere was not, and
cannet be, any conbroversy what Tacts wore established by the constitufion
and by-laws, it was Lor the court to therefrom determine whether the associ-
ation was arganized for an unlawful purpose. Phe court, therefore, erved in
submitting this question {0 the jury.

. Although the association may have been organized for a law{ul purpose,
the members thereof, including the defendants, may bhave acted. uniawfully,
and therefore rendered themselves liable in this action. This depends largely
on the guession whether there was proballe cause for the criminal prosecu-
tion. 1% is urged the ovidence does not sustain the Anding of the jury in this
respech, but we are not prepared to say we can, under the established ruls,
set aside the verdict, The court referred certain instructions asked by the de-
fendants as to what facts constituted probable canse, and in so doing it is
claimed the court erred. In these instructions were grouped facts which the
.defendants claim the evidence tended to establishy and if the jury so found,
then it is insisted the plaintiff failed w0 establish, there was not prebable cause.
We incline to $hink the instructions asked and refused were warranted by the
evidence. The courtcorrectly gave a general instruction which would be ap-
plicable in any case for malicious prosecution, and also, in another instruction,
grouped together somne of the facts stated in the inatructions refused, buf
omilted thierefrom at least one material fact, 'The oriminal charge against
the -plaintiff was the steating of certain calves, the property of Foreman
Thero was evidence tending to show that the plaintiff paid or gave his note
to Foreman. for the vaiue of the calves jrior to the finding of the indict-
ment. In grouping the facts this cirewmstance was omitted. .

Without determining whether there ghould be a reversal because of the re-
fusal, under the circwmnstances, to give tlie instructions asked, we deem it
proper, in view of a retrial, to say that, in actions of malicious prosecution,
where the evidence is conflicting and wheve the facts it tends to prove arc
nuinerous, it is exceedingly important the instructions in relation to what
constitutes probable cause ahonld Le clear, definite, and ceriaii It is true,
we apprebend that what constitutes probable cause is & mixed question of
Jaw and fact.  When the facts are adimitted or have been found by the jury,
the law declares whether there was probable cause or nob. We phink it is
important and the better way for the court $o group the facts togetlher in the
instructions which the avidence tends to prove, and theninstruct the jury, if
they find such fucts have heen established, they must find there was or wWis
not probable cause. Owen v. Owen, 22 Towa, 2715 Shaul v. Brown, 28 Towa, 37.

7. The first indictment was, as his been sald, quashed, antd the conse was
resubmitted to the grand jury and anobher indictment found. Asitdoes not
appear the defendants, or any of thera, had anything to do with such resub-
wission, it may be it should be presumed it was done by the conrt, and this
Lhe defendants claim is the fact. I8 snid the defendants should not be held
respousible for the confinuance of the prosecution, becanse thoy could nob
dismiss it. Instructions asked embodying this view were refused, as we
think correctly. Conceding the defendants were instrumental in cauging the
crimiant action to be commenced, we thinlk they are liabla for its continuance.
Jiacon v. Towne, 4 Cush. 217. R

1t may be true the prosecuting officer declined to dismiss sueh proceeding,
under the belief the plaintiff was guilty. 1ub sueh belief was, in all probabil-
ity, engenderad by informalion derived from the defendants, and the jury
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‘have found specially they did not state to such oificer all the facls within their
knowledge. This being so, it is fair to presume the eriminal action was nob
dismissed because the defendants had failed to do that which it wag their duty
‘to do; that is, to state to the prosecuting attorney all {he facts within their
knowledge, Tt is urged, the special finding above mentioned is against the
evidence, and we are asked to seb it aside. This we are not prepared to do,

8. There wag. evillence tending to show the Maintiff had possession of the
property shortly after the alleged larceny, and the defendants asked the court
to instruct the jury that such possession, unexplained, was evidence of guilt,
This instruction wag refused. It should have been given, It has Leen so
ruled by this cowrt in several cases. -

9. As has been said, the plaintiff was twice tried on the criminal charge.
On the first trial the jury were unable o agres on a verdict, and were dis-
charged.  The defendants sought to introduce in evidence the record of such
trial, which showed that the Jury retired to consider as to their verdict on the
fitth day of May, and, being unabls to agree, they were discharged the next
day. Tpon the ebjection of the plaintiff this evidence was excluded, It is
insisted by counsel for the defendants the evidence sought to be introduaced
wuas evidence of probable cause, and therefora the cours erred in excluding if,

1t has been leld that a conviction before a justice of the peico on 4 erim-
inal charge, and upon appeal there was an aequittal, is conclusive evidence
of probabie canse,  Whitney v. Peckham, 15 Mass. 243; Witham v, Gowen, 14
Me. 862, In Bacon v, Tewne, 4 Cush, 217, it is said the authority of the first,
caso has been doubted in Burt v, Place, 4 Wend. 591, and that if the convie-
tion before the justice is regarded “as evidence of probable cause, we think
it is prima facte only and not conclusive.”” And such is the rule in this stute,
Moffatt v, Fisher, 47 Towa, 478. In Garrard v. Willet, 4 J. J. Marsh. 628, it
was held “that the Onding by the grand jury [of an indictinent] is prima
Jacie evidence of probable cause,” In Smithv. MeDonald, 3 Bsp.7, it 13 said
if the evidence on the trial of the eriminal charge s such as to cause the jury
to hesitate as to an acquittal, it was evidenca of prebable cause, In the case
at bar the jury were unable to agroe as to the innocence or guilt of the de-
fendant., It follows, of course, that the jury, or some of them, must have he-
lisved lhe plaintiff to be guilty. The fact that he was acquitted by another
jury cannet affect the resuls which must: necegsarily follow, because the first
Jury failed to acquit. We think the evidence offered was admissible, becanse
it tended fo show probable canse. It was not conclusive, and, like any other
prima facie evidence, was subject to Le explained. The guestion is not
whether the plaintiff was guilty, but whether the defendants had reasonable
cause to so believe, If the finding of an indictment is evidence of probable
cause, or the evidence on the trial of the eriminal charge is such as to cause
the jury to hesifale is evidence of probable cause, 16 seems to us the inability
of the jury to agree must have the same effect. The evidence offered wis,
therefore, admissible.

The errors not considered are rather of a minor character, whick will not
in all probability affect the result if another trial is had, Reversed.

{61 . Towa, 683) _
Swarrs v, CIssNA,

Filed October 17, 1883.

Where a vordiet s for a gross sam, and doca nob show on its face whether or not interest was ale
lowed in fxing the nmount of-the verdict, an affldavit of one of the jurora that no interest was nllowed
18 admisgible, .

This court wiil look into the record for the purpose of determining whetler questlons cortified by a
trin} jndge for opinton of the court fairly arlse in the ¢ase, to the end that real controversies, aad not
mero abstract questions, may be determined,



: Jounson v. MILL¥ER and others.
(Supreme Cowrt of Town. CGetober 16, 1886.)

L. Mavictous Prospourion—ProBaBLE CAUSE—(QUESTION FOR JURY. :
. In an action for malicions progecution, the guestion of prebable cause isa mized
’ qmzition of law and fact, and, in a case when the defendwnts had caused Lhe plain-
“ tif to be indicted for the larceny of certain calves, which they knew had bheen
* gtolen, and which the plaintiff admitted to them that he had had in his possession
the duy alter the theft, the question whether or not they should have believed hia
explanation of his possession of the calves was properiy submitted to the jury.!
2. Lancuxy—PossessioN oF THING S101BN. .
) The possession by a person of stolen property the day after it was taken Is jrrima
*o facie evidence that hestole it, unless he gives a reascnable explanation of bow it
-+ eame into his hands.? :

18ee note at end of case, part 1. 28ee note at end of case, part 2.
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3. Maznicrovs PROSECUTION—PROSICUTION BY AN ASSOCIATION—MALICR.

Where a voluntary association, the object of which is to assistin bringing thieves
to justice, has caused a prosecution to be instituted against a man for stealing
calves, the individual members of the association are notliuble in an action for ma.
leious prosecution brought by the man so indicted, although they voted for the
prosecution, and contributed money, unless, in doing so, they acted with malice,
and without probable cause. .

4. BAME~PROYRCUTION ON ADVICE oF DISTRICT ATTORNEY,

One who, in instituting a eriminal prosecution, has acted on the advice of the pros.
ecubing attorney, given upona full and fair statement of sll the material Tacts which
he knew, or wlhich be had reasonable ground to believe, existed at the time, is not
liable in an action for malicious prosecution,!

8, Samr—TvipENCE—MALICE—WITNTSS EXPLAINING WHAT HE UNDKESTOOD A STATE-
© MEBNT To MEAN.

A witness, in an action for maliclons proseention, cannot explain what he under-
stood one of the defendants to mean when the defendant said to him, during the
prozecution, *If we had our way, we would make short work of him, as they did
with Hi Roberts,” ‘

8. BaME—~HunmissioN T0 JURY oF QUESTION oF Facr PROVED a8 To ONE oF Suveran Dz-
FENDANTS.
Tt is reversible error to submit to the jury in an action for malicious prosecution
against several defendants, a material question of fact ag to probable cause, of which
there is evidence as to one ofthe defendants only, ‘

Appeal from Black Hawk district court.

This is an action for the recovery of damages for an alleged malicious pros-
ecution. The case has once before beon in this court. See 63 Lown, 539; 17
N. W. Rep. 34. On that uppeal the judgment in favor of plaintiif was re-
versed, and the cause was remanded. A second érial resulted in a verdict
and judgment for plaintiff. Defendants appealed.

Bodes, Husted & Botes and Hubbard, Clark & Dawley, for appellants.

Thie court cannot assume a fact inifts instructions, Ruter v. Koy, 46 Towa,
182; Walters v. Chicago, R. I. & P. Iy., 41 Towa, 78; York v. Wallace, 48
Towa, 307 Case v. Burrows, 52 Iowa, 146; 8. C. 2 N. W. Rep. 1045; Perigo
v. Chicago, R. I, & P. Ry, 50 lowa, 327; 8. C. 7 N. W. iep. 627; Stale v,
Bailey, 54 Towa, 414; 8. C. 6 N, W, Rep, 589.

Where instructions are so contradictory that it is impossible to tell which
the jury followed, a new trial wili be allowed. Hawes v. Burlington, C. R.
& V. Ry. Co., 64 lowa, 819; 8. C, 20 N. W, Rep. 717; eiting Hoben v, Bur-
lington & M. R. Ry. Co., 20 Towa, B02; State v. Hartzell, 58 Yowa, 520; 8.
C. 12N, W. Bep. ho7.

The question of probable canse rests enly on those facts and eireunstances
which were known to the prosecutor af the time tlie progecution was begun,
and not upon any which afterwards caune to his knowledge, Swaim v. Staf-
Sord, 3 Ired, 28%; Munns v, Dupont, 1 Amer. Lead. Cas. 213; Gallowey v.
Steroart, 49 Ind. 156,

-W. 4. Foster and O. II, Wheelar, for appelise. :

It is not necessary that.the defendant, in an action for malicions prosecu-
tion, should be the originator of the prosecution. It is enough to ronder him
liable for damages that he volantarily participated in the prosecution, and
that it was carried on with his countenance and approbation, if the jury find
the other facts necessary to fix his liability. See Stansbury v. Fogle, 87 Md.
869; Clements v. Ohrly, 2 Cockb. & R. 686; Green v. Cochran, 43 lows, 544;
Weston v. Beeman, 27 Law J. Exch. 57; Churchill v, Siggers, 3 El. & Bl
987 MceWilliams v. Hoban, 42 Md, 56.

The question of probabie cause’is one of law, when there is nodispute as to
the facts. Center v. Spring, 2 Iowa, 393; Shaul v. Brown, 28 lowa, 37;
Burns v. Evben, 40 N. Y. 463; Thaule v. Krekekler, 81 N. Y. 428; Stons v.

18ce note at end of case, part L.
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Crocker, 24 Pick. 31; Burton v. 8t Paul, M. & M. Ry. Co., 22 N. W, Rep.
800; Beldwin v. Weed, 17 Wend, 224; Kidder v. Parkhurst, 3 Allen, 393.

In order to make the adviece of counsel avallable as a defense, the defendant
must show that e communicated to him all the facts which he knew, or by
reasonable diligence could have known, bearing upon the guilt or innocence
of the accused, even though the defendants supposed that someoe of the facts
were not material. 1 TIil. Torts, H03; Wicker v. Holchkiss, 62 1il. 107;
Durris v. North, 64 Mo. 420; Ames v. Rathbun, 55 Barb. 194; Fisher v.
Foryester, 33 Pa. §t. 501; #Hll v. Palin, 88 Mo, 13; Sharpe v. Johuston, 59
Mo, 557; Thompsan v. Lumley, 50 How. 105; Fagnan v. Knox, 066 N, Y.
525; Bell v. Pearcy, b Tred. 83; Munns v, Dupont, 1 Amer, Lead, Cas. 214;
Cooley, Torts, 183; Turner v. dmmbler, 10 Q. B. 252;: Galloway v. Stewart,

40 Ind. 156, :

RenDp, J. The plaintiff and all the defendants except 8. ID. Potter reside
in Jones county. Potter is a resident of Greene county. In June, 1874, Pot-
ter purchased about 50 head of calves in Jones county, which he drove to his
farm in Greene counfy. The defendant FForemnan claimed that four of the
number belonged to him, and that they had been stolen from him, and he in-
stituted a suit for their recovery before a justice of the peace in Greene county,
and, on the trial, he established his right to them. Potter clnimed that he
had purchased said calves from plaintifl, and an indictinent-was subsequently
returned by the grand jury, in which lie was accused of the larceny of the
property; Lut, upon the trial of the indictment, he was acquitted. ITe then
instituted this suit, alleging that the defendants had conspired togoether to
institate said prosecution, and that it was cominenced maticiously, and with-

“put probable canse. ) ]

1. The first point urged by counsel in argument in this eourt is that, upon
the undisputed facls of the transaction, as shown by the evidence given upon
ihe trial, thers was probable cause for the institution of {he prosecution, and
that the verdict is therefore without support. The guestion whether there
was probable cause for the commencement of the proseculion is what is
denominated a mixed question of law and fact. If there are no facts in dis-
pute, the question is for the court; but, if thereis a controversy as to the
facts, it should be submitted to the jury. Cooley, Torts, 181; Center v,
Spring, % Towa, 393.

Plaintiff has always admitted that he seld and delivered to Potter seven of
the ealves, which the latter drove to Greene county. In Octoler, 1874, Tore-
man visited Potter’s place, and, on his return fo Jones county, he infuormed
plaintiff that he had found four ealves which had been stolen from him in
Potter’s possession, and that the latter claimed that he had purchased them
from plaintiff, and he demanded payment for them. In a few days after-
wards he again cualled upon him, accompanied by Polber, und the latier
stated to plaintiff that the fonr ealves which I'oreman eclaimed (and which he
had then recovered in the procceding before the justice) wers of thie number
of those sold him by plaintiff. In neither of thess interviews did plaintiff
malke any question as to the identity of the calves claiined by Foreman with
those sold by him to Potter, and in the last interview he selifled with the par-
ties, and gave Potter his nete for their value. e, in effect, and perbaps in
express terms, admitted that he had in possession, and had sold to Potter, the
ealves which had been stolen from Foreman; but this admission wag based
on the representations of Potter as to their identity.. In both of the inter-
views he claimed to have purchascd fhem from a man who was a sfranger to
him, and who stated that his name was Smith. IIe stated to them that on
the day before he sold the calves to Potter he was in the store of Coppees &
Derr, in Olive, and that while there he inquired of the proprietors of the
store whether they knew of any cattle for sale, and that the man Smith was
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in the store at the time, and asked him what kind of eattle he desired to Luy,
and that he replied that he wanted yoilng cattle; and that Smith then stated
that he had five calves that he wanted to sell, und that they were on the com-
mons some distanee from the town; and that he then went with Smith,
accompanicd by Lia brother, Nelson Johnson, who had gone to the store with
him, fo where the calves.were, and there contracted with Smith for their
purchase, and paid him for them: and that Smith agreod to deliver them at a
certain pasture, and that he found them in that pasture the next morning,
and drove them from thers to where he delivered them to Potter. Ho also
stated Go theny that, when he loarned that Foreman v ‘a8 clatming the calves,
he went into the neighborhood in which Smith had represented helived, and in-
quired for him, but that he had been unable to iind hin, At his request, Fore-
tan wenb with him to the store of Coppees & Derr, and these parties stated to
them thas plaintiff had a conversation with a stranger in the store about the
purchase of cattle, and thoy detailed the transaction gubstantially as plaintiff
had stated, but were unable to fix the time wlen the transaction oceurred.  In
subsequent conversations, with other of the defendants, plaintiff mude the
same statement to them, and he informed some of them that, when he drove
the calves from the pasture the next morning after the purehase from Smitl,
Foreman wag working in the highway adjoining the pasture, in plain sight
of the calves, and not morve than 30 or 40 rods from them. In some of thess
conversations he stated that on the same day on which he made the purchase
from Smith he went to the town of Stanwood, and had certair business
bransactions with parties whose names he gave.  On subsequent inquiry,
however, the defendant learned that those parties claimed that the transie-
tlong which plaintiff claimed were had on the day hefore he sold the calves to
Potier did nof take place until nearly two months after that, Other fucts in-
cident to the transaction were known to defendants when the prosecution
was instituted, bat they all bear on the question of the reasenablencss of the
aceount given by plaintiff as to how he came into possession of the property,
and need not Le stated. '

When the prosecution was commenced, then, the defendants knew (1)
that the property had been stolen by some person; (2) that by the plaintiff's
own admission he had the stolen property in his possession soon after the
farceny; and (8) that he claimed to have acquired the possession of it by pur-
chase from the man Smith, .

That the irst two fasts, standing nlone, would have afTorded probable cause
for instituting the prosecution, cannot be denied; but it is equally apparent
that, If plaintiil’s story in explatation of hig possession of the property is
true, no ground for the prosecution existed. The nuestion, then, whether
there was probable cause depends upon whether the facts and circumstances
of the transaction, as they wore known and understood by tlie defendants,
would have warranted an ordinarity prudent and cautious man in the bolief
that plaintitf’s story as to how lLe acquired the possession was faise.

The answer to the guoestion depends, then, upen the conclusion or deduc
tion which should be drawn from the numerous facts :nd circumatances of
the cuse, and we think it wus the provinea of the jury to draw that conelu-
sion.  The court conld not say, as a matler of law, that thae story was so un-
reasonable or improbable as to he unworthy of helief. It was properiy lef$
to the jury, and we cannot interfere with their fnding, o '

2. Asstated above, plaintiff, in effect, ad mitted, when he made the setle-
ment with Foreman and Potter, that be had sold to Polter four calves which
belonged to Poreman.  After the indictment was returned, however, he, in
company with his brotlier, who he claims was bresent when he madse the pur-
chase from Smith, went to Pottor's place, and Potler pointed out to them the
fourealves that Foreman had elaimed; and on the trial both he and his brother
testified that those were not the calves he had sold to Totter. ‘
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The distsict court gave the following instruction to the jury: “If the jury
Bnd that the defendants icarned lLefors the prosecution complained of was
eommenced, by statements which they might reasonably and prudently rely
upon and beiieve, and did rely upon and believe, that Foreman’s calves wore
#tolen, and that, within a day or two thereafter, Lhio plaintiff, Johnson, sold
and delivered them to Pobter, and that, when they wore found by Foreman
in Potter’s herd, Johnson guve lis note for their value, and attempted to ac-
JLount for his sale of them to Potter by stating that he bought them from a
stranger, Who could not be found, and if defendunts in like manner found
and believed that his statoments and details of the purchase claimed to have
been made of such stranger were unreasonable, improbable, and contradict-
oy, in material matters, and they had no Enowledge of any mistuke on
plaintifls part in making such adméssions or explanations, then, &8 a nas-
wr of kiw, this created a probable cause for a criminal prosesution,”

. This instruction, except the italicised clause, was given at defendant’s re-
xmst, that elause being added as a modifieation of the instruetion as asked,
A8 modified, the instruction submils to the jury for their determination the
-question whether defendunts had knowladge when the prosecution was cown-
meneed that, when plaintiff mado the admission that four of the ealves whicl
he sold 1o Potter belonged to Foroman, he was laboring under a mistake as
{o that fact, If the calves elaimed by Foremun were nob purchased by Pot-
der from plaintiff, Potter may hiave known at the time that plainiiff mada
the admission by mistake, and it would have been entirely preper to submit
that question, as to him, to the jury. But pilaintiff did not claim that Lo was
laboring under a mistake when ho made the admission until after the prose-
eution was instituted, and there is no evidence tending to show that any of
the defendants except Potter had any knowledge or information on the sub-
Jeet until he made the claim.  As to them, thercfore, the instruction submits
to the jury a question on which there was no evidence whatever, and, as thers
was evidence from which the jury might have found that plaintifl was
wistaken when he made thae adntission, they may have heen prejudieed by it.
We hiave xo often held that it is reversible error to submit to the jury a ma-
terial quostion of fact for their determination of which bhere is no evidence,
that it cannot now be necessary o cite tho eases in which the holding has

been made.

3. The defendants asked the following instruetions, which the court ro-

fused to give:

“(C) In cases of larceny, the nalked fact that recentiy stolen property is
fomud fu possession of an acensed person raises a legal presumption of guils,
and casts upon him the burdew of explaining his possession in a satistactory
manner.  Until satisfactorily explained, the naked fact of possession of re-
cently stolen property is of itself probable cause for the prosecution of the
person possessed thereof,

“(7) By a reasonable explanation is meant a statenent of alleged facts
which are consistent, rational, and likely o oceur in transactions sinilsr to

At attempted to he explaified,

(8} An explanation of the possession of recently stoler property which .

“fa improbable and unlikely to be true, in the ordinary transactions of men,

wheraby the possession of personal property is changed from one to anotler,

18 not, in law, a reasonable explanation, and no person is bound to accapt

such explanation, and desist from a prosecution of one who is found to have

Ybeen in possession of stolen property immediately after the larcony thevcof.”
.. The court, however, on its own motion, gave the following instructions:

“(6) To constitute probable cause for eriminal prosecution, there must be
such reasonable grounds of suspicion, supported by circumstances sufliciontly
strong in themselves, to warrant am ordinarily cantious man in-the belief

‘that the person accused is guilty of the offense charged. The law does not
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requirea certainty that an accused person is guilty before another may proceed
against him. It is enough that a felony has been committed, and the cir-
cumstances are such as to lead a reasonably prudent and cuutious man to
believe honestly, and without prejudice, that the aceused is guilty thereof,”

“(19} In determining the question of probable eause for the prosecution of
Jolinson, the following prineciples of criminal law must be considered by the
jury, namely: The possession of personal property which has been recently
stolen i8 prima focle evidence that the person in whose possession it is so
found or traced stole the propertly, unless he satisfuctorily explains his pos-
session, and shows how he came by the property. ~If sueh person attempts
to explain his possession of property recently stolen by statements that he
boughi it of an unknewn person, who éannot be found, and the details of
the purchase, as he gives them, arc unnatural, unreasonable, or improbable,
that tends to strengthen, rather than weaken, the presumption of guilt. If
his statements as to such purchase from an unknown persen are, in material
mutblers, contradictory and inconsistent,-—that is, not faverable to innoecenee;
and if, after admitting the possession of property recently stolen, and atlempt-
ing to account for it by purchase from an unknown person, who cannot be
found, he then denies such possession altogether,—-this does not tend to es-
tablish his innocence.”

Conceding thai the instructions asked by the defendants correctly express
the law, we are clearly of the opinion that they were not prejudiced by tie re-
fusal of the court to give them. As applieable to this case, the propositions
embodied in them are-—First, that {he possession of the stolen property by
plaintiff afforded probable cause for the commencement of the prosccution,.
unless he Lad given a reasonable explanation of such possession, aud, sseond,
if the {acts stated by him in explanation of his possession of thie property were
not consistent, or stuch ag might reasonably be expected to oceur in such a
transaction, the explanation was not reasonable, within the meaning of the
law, and defendants were not bound to aceept it, or desist from the prosecu-
tion. It may be conceded that neither of these propositions is stated, in ex-
press terms, in the instructions given, but, in substance, both ave given. In
the sixth instruection given, the jury were told in offect that the proseention
was not without probable-cause, if the circunslances were sueh as to warrant
a prudent and cautious nian in the belief that plaintiff was guilty; and in the
nineteentl they were teld that his possession of the property was prima facle
evidence that he was guilty, unless lie had given a reasopable ¢xplanation of
guch possession, The jury could hardly have failed to understand frow Lhis
that defendants were not bound to desist from the prosecution, uniess the ex-
planation given was reasonable, and they were left to determine that ques-
tion from the circumstances proven.

4. Tt was shown that tho defendantis were members of a voluntary associ-
ation, the object of which was to assist in the proseculion and bringing to
justice of thieves, and other violators of the law; und there was evidence tend-
ing to prove that the association, at & meeting at which all of the defendants
were present, resoived fo institute » prosecution aguinst plaintiff for the lar-
ceny of said property, and that ench voted in favor of the proposition; and
that a eommittee was appointed by the association to look up the evidence
against plaingil, and bring the case to the atiention of the district attorney;
and that the defendants contributed money toaid in the prosecution. It was
also proven that B. V. Miller, one of the defendants, and another person,
who was a member of the assceiation, Iaid the ense before the district atlor-
noay, and made a staterent to him of what they elaimed wore the facts of the
transaction, and this was done in obedience to the direction which hiad been
given by the association. The district attorney then brought the case befors
the grand jury, and the defendants uppeared before that body in obedienes fo
subpeenas served on them, and gave feslimony., There was no evidence,
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Lowever, that any of the defendauts except 1%, V. Miller had anything to do

with bringing the charge to the attention of the district attorney or grand
jury, except that which tends to show that they participated in the action ol
the association: and that is the only evidence whieh tends to prove that there
was o common design or purpose by all of the defendants o institute Lhe
prosecution. The court gave the following instructions:

“(23) The association not being incorporated, its members are individ-
ually liable for its unlawful acts, if any, if they took part therein; and,
though the associntion was organized legally, its powers could have been used
for an unlawful purpose,

“(24) Yon are instructed that if you find from the evidence that the as-
socintion undertoek or aided.to prosecule plaintiff upon the charge of steal-
ing the calves of defendant Foreran, and thab sald prosecution was without
probable cause, and with malice, that the defendants in this action are liable
for Uhe said acls of said association only so far as they participated thevein
for that purpose: and before you can hold the defendants, or any of them,
liatile For the acts or proceedings of said association, in relation to fhe prose-
cution of piainsiff, you must find that they, cither by vele or by voluntary
contribution of money, or other means, parbicipated in the prosecution of
Johmson; that is, each defendunt is liable, if ab all, for the part said assoeins
tion took in said prosecution, only for what he did, or intentionally aided in
-doing, in furtherance of the prosecution of Johuson by said association.”

hese instructions hold that, if the proseeution was instituted by the asso-
cintion, the individnal defendants could be held iintle for its action in insti-
tuting it only in easc they participated in or aided the action. In that respect
they are undoubtedly correct. We held this en the former appeal. DBut
malice in the institution of the prosecution is an essential element of the cause
of action. To render the individual members of the association liable far the
action of the Lody, they must not-only have consented to or aided in it, but,
in deing so0, they must have acted with inalice; that is, they muss have be-
come purties consciously to the wrongful aet which was being dons. If the
proceciling was instiluted witheut probable cause, and any of the defendants
knew thab it was instituted by the malice of their associates, or if they were
themselves moved by nnlawful or evil motives in consenting {o or aiding it,
they were joint wrong-doers with all the others who were inoved by like mo-
tives, But some of them may have been influenced only by an honoest desire
tosee the law enforced agninst one whom they helieved to be guilty of acrime,
while obliers may have been moved by malicions motives. If so, thoe latter
are liable, while the others are nol, Under the instruction, however, they
might be held liable, for they do not make thie motive of the individual de-

fendant the test of his liability, In this respect they are erroneous.

%. The court admitted, over the objection of the defendants, evidence of
cortain statements and deeclarations said to have been made by individual
defendants during the progresgof the proseeution. Tt wasurged in argument.
that the court erred in admitting this evidence against any of the defendants,
except those who are alleged to have made the statements.  Without now
inquiring whether a prima focie case of conspiracy had been established so
as Lo mike the declarations and acts of each conspirator admissible against
the others, we Geem it suflicient to say that no such question was raised by
the objections made in the court nelow. The objection, in every case, a3

~ that the evidence was incompetontand jmmaterial; bub, in so far as it tended
{0 show the motives or feelings that actuated the person making the stabe-
ment, it was both competeni and material. In admitting the evidence,
therefore, the court did not hold that the statements were admissible as
against any of the defendants except those who made them.

6. A witness testified that one of the defendants on one occasion, when
speaking of plaintiff and the prosecution, made this statement: “If we had
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our way, we would make short work of him, as they did of i 1toberis.” Ile
was then asked what he understood the defendant to mean by his reference
to Hi Roberts. The question was objected to, but the wilness was permit-
ted to answer it, and he stated that he supposed him te mean that they would
haug him by the neck, The objection to the question should have been sus-
tatned. The opinion of the witness as to what was meant by the reference
wiasincompetent. It was understood in the community that Roberts, the per-
son reforrod to, had been hanged in a certain grove. When the jurors were
informed of that fact, éhey were quite ns competent to put a construction on
the language as was the wilness. Itis ordinarvily the provinee of the jury to
determine what deduction or conelusion should be drawn from a given stato
of facts,  There are some sxceptions to that rule, but this case is noi within
any of the exceptions.

7. One of the defenses relied on was that, in doing what they did about the
institution of the prosécution, the defendants acted on the advice of the dis-
triet attorney, to whom they had made a full and fair statement of the-tacts
of the transaction ag they had aseertained them, and of the evidence which
could be produced to substantinte tho charge against the plaintiff, and whe
had advised them that the facts and evidence alforded ground fur the insti-
tution of the prosecutien. The district conrt gave the following instruetion:

“{26) Whether or net the defendants, or'gome of them, did, before insti-
tuting the proceadings, malke a full, fair, and bonest stateiment to the district
abtorney. of all the material facts bearing upon the guilt of plaintift, of which
they had knowledge, and which they could have ascertained by reasonable
diligence, and whether, in commencing such prosecution, the defendants
acted in good faith, upon the advice of said district attorney, are questions of
fact to be determined by you from all of the evidence and circumstances in
the case. Tf you believe from the vvidenee that none of the defendants nade
-a fall, fair, and truthtul statement of such facts to the district attorney, or
that they instituted the criminal proceedings frow a fixed deterwmination of
their own, rather than trom the advice of sald district attorney, the advice of
the prosecuting attorney would not be a defense in this action.”

In our opinion, this instruction is erroncous. One whe seeks the advice
of counsel with reference to the commencement of a eriminal prosecution is
bound to act in good taith in the matter. Unless he does this, he will not
e protected from liability on the ground that he acted upon the advice given
himi. He is required to make to the counsael a full and fair statement of all of
the material facts known to him. If he hag rensonable ground for believing
‘that faels exist which would tend to exculpate the accused from the charge,
good faith requires that he shall either make further inguiry with reference
to those facts, and communieate the information obinined to the counse!, or
that he shall inform liiny of his belief of their existence, in order that he may
investigaie with reference to them, and take into account, in forming his
opinion, the inforimation attained with reference to them. Iiut he is not re-

- quired to do more than {his, Ife ig not required to institute a blind inguiry
to ascertain whether facts exist whicly would tend to the exculpation of the
party accuseil.  But if he honestly believes that lie is in possession of all of

the material facts, and makes a full and fair statement of those facts to the
counsel, and acts in good faith on the advice given him, he ought to be pro-
tected. This, it seems to us, should be thoe rule when the advice of private
counsel iy relied on, Bub there are more cogent reasons for applying it
wlere the communication is made to the public prosecutor. In criminal
cases, thaft oflicer is the representative of the state. e is required, not only
to prosecute indictments which are found, but it is his duty to assist in the
investigation of charges against individuals which are brought to the atten-
tion of the grand jury. IHe is by law made the legal advisor of the grand
jury. When evmplaint is- wmade to him that a public offense hiag beon com-
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nitted, it is his duty to investigaie the charge, and, if he deems it 8 matiter
of sufficient importance, to demand the attention of the grand jury. It ia
also his duty to have the witnesses subpanaed and brought before that body,
and he has the right to appear also, and assist in their examination, Neither
he nor the grand jury are confined in their investigations to the wibtnesses
named hy the complainant, but they have the power to send for and examine
any witnesses whom they have reason to beliove can give any material ovi-
dence bearing on the question of the guilt of the accuscl.  We will not, of
course, be understood a5 holding that a party who inaliciously makes a ground-
less charge to the district attorney, and thereby procures the (inding of an
indictment, is not answerable to the one injured by the procecding. It
would, howaver, be a very harsh rule, and one caleulated o discourage en-
tirely the making of eomplaints by private individuals, to hold that ono who
has acted on the advice of the district attorney, given upon a full and fair
statement of all the material facts which he knew, or which he had reason-
able ground to believe, existed at the time, was not protectad by the advice
of the attorney, simply because he did not, before making the complaint,
learn of other material facts of the existence of which he might have learned
by reasonable inquiry; yet that is the doctrine of the instruetion. The in-
struction seems Lo have the support of Hilliurd in his work on Torls, (see
volume 1, p. 506,) and Walte in his worlc on Actions and Defenses, {sa0
volums 4, p. 335.) Thoe doctrine of the text is supported, however, by but

faw of the cases cited in the notes in support of it, und we do not beileve it
is sound.

The judgment of the district court will be reversed, and the cause re-
manded. '
NOTE.

1. Manicrous ProsrcurioN—Prorasie Cause. The existence of probable cause is s
mixed question of Iaw and fact. Itis for the jury to determine what facts are proved,
and for the court to say whether or not they amount to probable cause, Burton v, 8t
Paul, M. & M. . Co., (Mini.) 22 N. W. Rep. 300; Johnson v.2iller, (Towa,) 17 N. W.
Rep. 34; 8. C.19N. W. Rep, 310; Ross v, Tangworthy, (Neb.} 14 N. W, Rep. 515; Castro v,
e Uriarte, 16 Fed. Rep. 93; Gee v. Culver, (Or.) 6 Pac. Rep. 775; Sartwell v. Parker,
{Mass.) BN, T, Rep. 807; but when thefacts arc undisputed, theeourtshould instruct the
jury that there wag or was not probabie cause, Brewer v. TJacobs, 22 Fed. Raep. 217, Cas-
tro v. Do Urinrte, 16 Fed. Rep. 93; Fulton v, Onest, (Cal.) 6 Pac, Llep. 491; Parli v.
Leed, (Ka.) 2 Pac. Rep. 635 Sartwell v.Parker, (Mass} & N. E. Tlep. 867,

As to how [ar & party will be profected by the advice of counsel, and what is essen-
tial 10 secure sueh protection, see Johnson v. Miller, (fows,) 19 N, W. Rep. 810; 5. C,
17 N, W. Rep. 84; Porter v. Knight, (lowa,) 19 N. W. Rep. 282, Witmore v, Mellinger,
{lows,) 18 N. W. Rep. 870; 8. C. 14 N. W. Rep. 7221 Swith v. Austin, (Mich.) 13 N. W,
Rep. 593; Logan v. Maytag, (lows,) 10 N. W. Rep. 3i1; Sherbprne v. Rodman, (Wis.)
g N. W. Rep. 414; FEmerson v. Cochran, (Pa.) 4 Atl. Rep. 488, and note. See, also,
Walker v. Comp, {Jowa,) 27 N. W. Rep. 801, and note; 8. C. 19 N. W, Rep. 802,

Tor a full diseussion of the questions of malicious proscention and probable cause,
Magmer v. Renk, (Wis)} 27 N. W. Rep. 25, and noto, 23; Temerson v. Cochiran, (Pa.) 4
Atl. Rep. 408, and note, 500; Taylor v. Rice, 27 Fed. Tlep. 264, and note, 267; Heap v.
Parigh, (Ind.) 3 N. . Rep. 544, and note, 552; Krulevitz v. Eastern 12, Co., {Mass.} & N,
B. Rep. 00 Gonzxales v, Cobliner, (Cul.) 8 Iac, Rep, 697, aud note, 700,

2. As to the presumplion of guilt crented by the unexplained possession of parsonal
properly, see State v, Pennyman, {lowa,) 26 N. W. Rep. 82; State v, Johnson, {Minn.)
21 N, W, Rep. 843 ; State v, Hopking, {fown,) 21 N. W Rep, 585 State v, Xollets, (lows,)
19 N.W. Rep. 206; State v. Tilton, (Iowa,) 18 N.W. Rep. 7163 Jobunson v, Miller, (Iowg,)
17 N. W, Rep. 34 8. C. 18 N, W. Rep, 319; State v. Richart, {Towa,) 10 N.'W, Rep. 657,
Ingalls v. State, (Wis.) 4 N, W. Rep. 785; Towle v. State, (Wig.) 2 N. W. Rep. 1133,
State v. Snell, (Wis.) 1 . W. Rep. 225; Wagner v, State, (Ind.) 7 N. Ii. Rep. 8%6; Hoge

v, People, {Ili.) 8 N. E. Rep. 786,
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sire to make mspeclal mention of but one
objection. The twenty-sccond paragraph
of the charge is as follows: “The killing
ofan assailantis justifiable on the grounds
of gelf-defense only when it reasonably ap-
pears to be the only means of saving the
iife of the party assanlted, or preventing
some great injury to his person,  Ifit is
apparent that the danger which secmerd
to threaten him can be avoided or prevent-
ed by ony other nicans in his power, he is
not justifled in taking the life of his assalil-
ant, In determining whether the defend-
ant in this case was justificd in using a
dangerous weapon in seli-defense, the in-
quiry is not whether danger to him exist-
ed in faet, butwhether, from al the attend-
ant and surroanding civeumstances at
the time of the conflict, it reasonably ap-
peared to the defendant, a8 a reasonable,
prudent, courngeous, and cautious man,
that hewas about to suflferdeath or great
hodily harm at the bands of the snid Louis
Miars, and if it 8o appeared to him, and if
it farther appeared to bim to be the only
meang of saving his lfe, or preventing
great bodily harm, he would be justified;
otherwise, he would not be justitied.” The
use of tho word “courageous ™ is clajmed
to be crroneous. It is not to be denied
that a striet construction of the language
employed is inuccurate, 1{ the court had
used the words “resgonably ™ instead of

~“reasonable” in connection with  the

words “prudent, courageous, and can-
tious,” it would be within the 1ule of re-
sponsibility preseribied by this court in nu-
merous decisions, In view Jf the fact that
the rule applicable to gell-defense Is eor-
rectly stated in several ollicr paragraphs
of the charge, we think the court surely in-
tended to qualify the word “courageous”
hy the word “reagonably,” and we think
the foailure to do so cannot be said to be
erroncous.  The instructions are not nee-
essurily repugnant to ench other, A care-
ful examination of the wholerecord has led
us to the conclusion that the judgment
should be aflirmed,

(82 Town, 692)
JoursoN v, MILLER et al.
(Suprcinc Court of fotwa., Jan. 206, 1801}

GENERAL AND BPECIAL VEgbpicr—Marnicious I'ros-
ECUTION ~— ADVICE oF CoUNsEL — ARREST or
JUDAMENT,

1. Wheore, in an action for malicious presecn-
tion, special fHodings'were made, and it was not
speeially found that delendant commenced the
criminal prosecution complained of, bat there
was a verdict for the plaintifl, it will ba consid-
sred that such a finding, being necessary-to be
made, is covered by the goneral verdict.

2. It is no defenso 1o an action for maticiens
prosecution by one who did not believe defend-
ant guilty of the erime charged that he made the
complaint upen the advice of counsol, after o full
and fair stutement of all the faects within his
knowledga,

3. Where thers is no direet finding as to
whether there wag probable cause for the prose-
cution, it will be inferred from a gencral verdict
for plaintiff that the jury found awantof probable

" cause, and, although the facts found are such as

to warrant suspicion, yet, if they do not necossa-
rily lead to a belief of plaintifi’s guilt, a genecral
verdiot for plaintifl is not so manifestly inconsist-
ent with the special {indings as to juslify judg-

ment for defendant on the special findings, not.
withstonding the verdict.

4, A motion in arrest of judament in a civil
case can only be made when the facts stuted in
the petition do not entitle plaintiff to any reliet
whataver.

Appeal from district court, Blackhawk
county; J. D. Laxgnax, Judgoe.

Action for malicious prosecution. "I'rial
by iury, verdict for piaintiff, and speeial
findings retorned. Defendants’ motion for
judgment on the speciad findings, and in
arrest of judgment, overruled, and jade-
ment for plaintiff on the general verdict.
Defendants appeal. For report of fornier
trial, see 63 Towa, 538, 17 N. W. Rep. 4,

Wheeler & Molftett and Woolf & Hanley,
for appellants. Boies, Husted & Boles, {or
appellee,

Givew,J. 1, The questions presented by
this appeal arise upon defendants’ motion
for judgment, and their motion in arrest
ol judgment. U'wenty-cight special inter-
rogatorics were submitted to and an-
swered by the jury, 2 of which were
at the request of plaintiff, and 26 at the
requegt of defendants. Defendants’ motion
for judgmoent on the special {indings is
upon three grounds, namely: “(1) Be-
eause It is establishied thereby that defend-
ants did not institute or commence the
criminal prosecution  complained of by
plaintiffl.  (2) Upon the facts found, they
are protected by the advice of counsel.
(v} Upon the facts found, there was prob-
able eanse for prosecation.” Theinterrog-
aturies are not only numerous, but some-
what lengthy, and it ig unuecessary to an
understanding of the guestions discussed
that wemmore than atate their substance
in connection with the guestions undor
consideration.

2, There is no direct finding as to whoeth-
er 1he defendants did commence the erim-
inal proseention complained of. In the
absenee of a special finding to the cone
trary, we must presuine from the general
verdiet that the jury fouand that the de-
fendants did commenee theeriminal prosoe-
cution. Suach a finding was necessary to
be made before they could Gnd a verdlet
for pladntiff, and all gquestions arising in
theease, not covered Ly the special find-
ings, are to be cousidered as having been
found in favor of, and covered by, the
general verdict. Cook v, Howe, 77 Ind.

442, Rice v. Manford, (Ind.) 11 N. IZ Rop.-

284 Lassiter v, Jackman, 88 Ind, 118; Ac.
ton v. Coffman, 74 Jowa, 17, 36 N. W. Rep,
774. Tt is fairly inferable, from the {ind-
ings hereafter noticed, that the jury did
fully understand thig issue, apd find that
the defendants not only commenced the
prosecution, but Adid have romething mores
to do with prosceuting o second indict-
ment than merely to state facts within
their knowledge tothedistriet atiorney.
3. In response to the second interroga-
tory sulimitted by the pladntifl, the jory
found that the defendants, in the prose-
cution of plaintiff, did not “zct In good
faith, upon the advice of counsel, believ-
ing: the plaintiff guilty of such charge.”
‘I'he following questions submitted at the
request of defendants were answered in
the aflirmative: “If you have answered

Sl
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plaintifi‘s secand ii‘lf(!l‘l’(];.‘,‘rlt()l‘y that de-
fendanta did not actin pood faith, upon
the advice of counsel, believing plaintig
to be gullty, wijl ¥OU now answer whoeth-
er defendants fuily and fairly stated 1o
the proszecuting attorney all of the mate-
rial facts [or ang against the theory of
plaintiif's guilt, which haqg come to their
knowledge  before the first indictnent ?
Answer. Yes, Did the district attorney,
after such statement, advise defendantsg
that tlere wasg probable cause to believe
the plaintifr guilty, and advise defendanty
that lis case should e submitted to the
grandjury ? A. Yes, Di(]defemmntsgobe-
tore such grand jury by reagon of hig ad-
viee, and in obedicnice to g subpwna, te-
wally served upon them, and give their evi-
dence, and the only evidence which they
suve on that occasion? A, Yeg.” It will
be seen from these findings that, while the
jury foand that the defendants fully and
fairly stated to the prosecn ting attorney
all of the material facts for and against
the plaintiti, which had ecome to their
knm\'rzdge. they did not believe the plain-
I guilty of the 1a reeny. T'he econtention
I8 whether advice of counsel i a protee.
tion to one who COmmences 8 prosecution
against anotier whio is not guilty, and
whom he does not believe to be guilty., 1t
s pood faith that excuses from wionginl-
iy tommencing or continuing the criminal
prosecution. Certainly one cannpot be said
to act in good faitl who causes the prose-
cution of another on & charge of which
he does not believe him guilty. 1In Centep
V. Spring, 2 lowa, 3593, it ig gaid, as the
general expression of the rele, that if “tho
defendant misrepresents the facts to such
ecounsel, i he does not act in good fait}
undet the adviee reecived, if he does not
himrell beliove that there is canse for the
rosecution or action, he will not be Pro-
teeted,
inActon v, Coffm am T4 Ivva, 17, 36 N. W
"Rep. 774, the court instructed that, if the
defendant aeteqd in good faith upon the
apinion given by the attorney “that he
believed himself that there wan cause for
the prosceution, then he is not liable. » In
that case, the fury found specially that
the defendant dig seck the advice of Co-
sel; that the attorney, with a fyn knowl-
edge of the facts, ndvised that & s0it was
maintainable, and that the defendant act.
ed on that advice in commencing the prosg.
ecution, In that case,as in thig, the Ques-
tion was whether the facts thus found
conclusively show that the general voerdict
18 80 inconsistont therewith 1hat i+ magt
be set aside, The court says: “It muast be
assumed that the jury ollowed tho in-
streetions above sef out. Therefore thoy
-must have found that, altlrough plaintify
stated the factls to counsel, und acted gn
the advice of Counsel in commencing the
criminal action, yet, in doing so, he dig
not act in good faith, or that he himselt
did not believe there was prohable cause
for prosccution.” 1y that case ag in this,
the instroction wag not excepted to, and
constituted the law of the case. Itis con.
tended that the finding that the defend-
ants did not act in Zood faith, upon the
advice of counsel, Lelieving the plaintiff
guilty of the charge, is the finding of g
mere infercnce or conclusion, and is over.

NORTHWESTERN REPORTER, Vor, 47,

‘rome by the other.ﬁndings.

{Towa.

Ir 1t Lo the
finding of o mere canciusion, It (g 8115~
tained by the zeneral verdiet, nnd there iy
nothing in the other indingy to negatlive
it, as it is nowhoere iound, even by infer-
ence, that the defendants believed the
Dlain tiff gullty.

4. Probable causeis defined to bevy req.
sonable ground of Buspicion, supported
hy circumstances sulliciently strong in
themselves to wa rrant & cautious man in
the belief that the person accused is giil ty
of the offense wWith wiiclh he ig charged.”
It is & mixeq question of factand law, The
sufficiency of {lie cireumstances to constj-
tute probable cause is w guestion ol law
for the court, and 1ile evidenge of the ¢ir.
cuamstances is for the determination of the
jury. Centoer v, Spring, supra, ang author.
ities thercin cited. The factg found by the
jury are, in substance, thege: Ifour ealvey
were glolen from the defendaut Foreman
on the night of June 3, 1874 in Jones Coun-
tv. In October Tollowing, Foremnn found
the ealves in the bossession of the defend.
ant Potter, in Greene coun ty. Potter
claimed to haye purchased the ealves of
the plaintiff, in Jones county, on June 94,

874 Foreman soon aller communiented
these faets to pPinintifl, who econceded that
he did sell the Wlvey to Potter o or

Iabout Jone 4, 1874, and claimed thut ho

had Durehased them, while running on o
common six or sevej arfles from Fore.
man’s plaee, of g stranger, who said his
hame was Smith, about 11 o’clock, on or
about June 4th, 1o be dolivered in past-
are six orseven niijos away, where henfter.
wards {found the alves, Dut did not find
the stranger; that the plaintift therealfer
seltled with Potter for the alves, und
Lave g note for the value thereof; and
that plaintil never 2ave any other expla.-
nation of bis possession of theealves to {he
defendants prior to the commencemoent af
the ceriminal Prosceution,  The further
fndings show that these faets were kno Wi
to the defendants Foreman, Potter, ang
Tralt at the tinge of the commencement of
the prosecution, but Were not known
Lo theother detondy nts, There is a further
linding that nejther Of the defendants hag
been informed of any istake in the -
misslon of plaintin that e had had the
stolen calvos in iy possession, and gold
them to Pot ter, until aftor the COMMeHen.
ment of the eriminal broceedings, and
that, at the tiue the procecdings  woere
cominenced, the defen ants did Lelieve the
admission of plaintiff, that he did have
the stolen calviy in his trossession, to Lie
true. In mstrueting upon the quoestion
whaother the defendants hag probable
cause for helieving the Maintiif guilty, the
court, following e suggestion made oy
the former appeal, (63 Lowy, GUS, 1T N. w,
Rep. 34) grouped together in an instruae-
tion the factg whicel thie evidence fonded to
prove, and direeted the jury Lhut, if the
defendants discovered and believed that
the statements of (e plaintiflf, as to the
dotails of +he purchase a8 elaimied by hLim,
were unressonahle, eon tradictory, and
improbable, then such faery coming to
their knowledge, and believed by them,
would, in law, constitufe probable causy
for o criminal proseeution, There is no
direct finding as to whether there was

e e e n
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probable cause or not, and thefactsfound,
though such as to warrant suspicion, do
not necessarily lead to a helief of guilty.
The inference irom the reneral verdict 1s
that the jury foumd that there wus o
want of probable cause, and this they
might do upon the conelusion that the de-
fendants, though believing plaintiif’a ex-
planation -of his possession to be guspi-

clous, ¢id not hellevehim guilty. 1t is only

when the special findings of fact are muani-

featly inconsistent with the gencral ver-

dict that the specinl findings should con-

trol. Hardin v, Branner, 2 lowa, 3645

Clark v. Warner, 32 Iowa, 9197 Mershon

v. Insaranee Co., 34 Iowa, 87} Connoers v.

Raliway Co., 71 Iowa, 480,82 N. W. Rep. 465,

Phereis no manifest inconsistency betiveen

these Aindings and the verdiet. They are

reconciiable upon the theory that the de-

fendants id not belleve the plaintiif

zuilty. Asitfollowsfmmthm—:ccom:lusions
that appetlants” motion for judgment on
the special findings was rightly overruled,
it is uunecessury that we notice the dis-
eussion as to the delendants’ liability for.
the finding of the second indictment.

5. A motion inarrest ol judgment isonly
availoble “if the facty stated by the peti-
tion do not entitle the plaintifl Lo any re-
liof whatever,” Code, § 2650. The ground
of defendants’ motion is that the court
having instructed the jury to find for the
defendants, on the charge of conspiracy,
fhere were no allegations upon which &
joint judgment could pe rendered against
the defendants. 1t is a sullicient angwer
to uay that the facts stated in the petition
dld entille the plaintil to some relief, and
thercfore the guestions disenssed could
not be raised by amotion in arvest of judg-
ment, A eaveful consideration of the whole
record leads us to the conelusion that the
judgment of the digtriet court should bo
allirmed,

{82 Jowa, 88)
Crivrox Hmienrs Lavo Co. v, RANDILL.

(Swpreme Court of Towa. Feb. 2, 1891.)

DEen To UNINGORTORATED COMPANY —Tax-TrrLe
—ADVERSE POSSESSION.

1. A conveyance lo an unincorporated com-
pany which goes into possession under the doead
passes o title which vests in the company subse-
quenily incorporated.

9. A couveyance deseribing the land by lots,
bloeks, or government subdivisions, and adding
al the end.ol the description “also together with
wll other tands that may not have been horecto-
fore deseribed belonging to said” grantor, passes
sitie to a lot not cxpressly mentioned,

4 Where a lot is by mistake taxed In the
niame of o person who has ne interest in it, but
who owas the adjoining lot, and notice Lo redecin
is served on him, and also on the person in pos-
session, the tax-deed execuled to the purchasecr is
valid in the absence of any proof of fraud.

4. Plaintiff owned the lot in controversy, but
it was assesscd to defendant, who had no interost
in it, and sold for tuxcs. Defendant acguired the
bax-litie, but did not go In possession. The lot
when sold wus in possession of plaintift’'s tenant.
When defendant acquirved title, he went 1o tho
tenant of the lot, who was then paying rent to
plaintiff, and told him that ho owned the lot and
would loase it. The tenant said “All right” to
defendant’s offer to lease the lot, in consideration
of the tenant’s looking after the fences. e con-
tinued. to pay rent to plaintiff, however. This

after the statute had commenced o run againat
the tox-deed. Feld, that the tenant was plain-
tiff's tenant, and that his five years' possession

barred defendantts tax-title.

Appeal from diasrict court, Polk county;
W, . Conuan, Judge.

Action to quiet the title tu lot 22, South
Park addition to Des Moines, Iowa.
Piaintifl ¢laims to be the ownerof said ot
by patent-title, and defendant claims to
own it under a tax-sale thercof loy the
taxes of 1877, and  a deed issued thereos.
Tsuch party denies the otlhier's title. De-
cree was entered for the plaintiil; defend-
ant appeals.

Kaulfman & Guernsey,for appellant. [
C. & C. L, Nourse, for appellee.

Given, J. L B. F.Allen wag the owner
of the patent-titie to a tract of land in-
cluding the lot in question. e con veyed
the traes by deed, dated February 15, and
recorded March 3, 1870, to the South Park
cowpnny, plaintifi’s crantor, by which 1t
was, with other land, platted into lots,
ete.  April 22, 1870, articles of incorpori-
tipn of the South Park Company woere
filed for record. Appellant contends that
as the South Park Company was not in-
corporated when the deed was executed
there was no grantee, and, thereiore, the
deed did not pass title to any one. Itdoes
not appear that the South Park Company
either received or made copveyance of this
jot ns a corporation: Surely o company
may be so organized as tu do both with-
~out being incorporated.  Assume, T
ever, as is probably the tfnct, that the
South Park Cowmpany did receive | nnd
convey litle as a corporate body, we think
the title frem Allen vested iu it as prainst
one not hakiing by a superiov title, not
only because of the conveyance but be-
cause uf possession taken under it.

2. The South Park Company convoey od
1o plaintill by deed. wherein the deserip-
tion of the property is given by lofls,
blocks, or government subdivisions, cov-
ering over twao pages of legul cap, lol-
Jowed swith these words: “Also together
with all other lands that may not have
peen heretofore  described belonging to
gaid South Park Co.” Appeliang con-
tends that ag certnin lots are expressly
mwentioned, that excludes all others, and
as Jot 228 not mentioned it Aid not pass
by the deed. Such a construction of this
deed wonld be against the manifest intent
of the graptor. The evident purpuse was
to econvey all the land owned by the gran-
tor. 'I'Le lots were numwnerous, the deserip-
tlon lengthy, and omisgions possible,
To cover any omissions and express the
.purpose of the pavties the recital guoted
wus added na deseriptive of what further
wag conveyed., Weare in 1o doubt but
that plaintiff {8 the owner af lot 22, un-
Joss Gefendant’s tnx-title divested it orlis
grantor of ownership,

3. The lot in controversy was sold Octo-
her 21, 1878, for the taxes Of INTT, tu W, O,
Curtis, who assigned the eertificate to IS
J. Adams, to whom @ tax-deed was exe-
cated Jnly 18, 1885, in pursuance of notice
1o redeem, served by Adamson the defend-
ant Randell, in whose name the lot was

possession of the tenant continuod for flve years

then taxed on August18, 1881, and on John
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was made by the court. The report was not
changed, but the court simply modified the
referee’s report to the extent indicated, and
rendered judgment for the balance as recom-
mended by him. Appellant's exceptions
were filed prior to the time she filed her sup-
plemental report.  These facts bad no effect
upon the neglect of appeilant to file her ex-
ceptions In time. Tlence appellant has no
exceptions to the findings of the referee, and
the court did not err in striking them. With
the record in this condition, appeliant cannot
be heard upon this appeal upon the merits of
the case. Aflirmed. ‘

[ ——
@3 Towa, 165)

JOIINSON v. MILLIR et sl
(Supreme Court of Iowa. Dec. 20, 1854
JUDGMNENT FOR COSTS—JOIRT DEFENDANTS.

Code, § 2934, providing that where tliere
are several defendants the cost shall be appor-
tioned secording to the several judgmnents ren-
dered, does not apply, in case several persons
are sued in tort and they defend jointly, and
judgment is rendered in favor of plamtiff
against all but one defendant, so zs to prevent
judgment from being rendered against the other
defendants for all the costs.

Appeal from district court, Blackhawlk:
county; D. J. Lenahan, Judge,
Boies, Couch & Boies, for appellants,

Wheeler & Moffit and Wolf & Hanley, for
appellee,

KINNE, J, 1. Thiz case l1s commonly
known as the “Jones County Calf Oase.’
It was an action for malicious prosecution,
begunt in Jones county, Jowa, on May 23,
1878, against 1. V. Miller, David Tall,
George W, Milier, Abe Miler, John Ifore-
man, 8. D, Porter, and Herman Kellar, Ior
the purposes of this opinion we need not
state the issues between the parties further
than to say that the action was against all
of the defendanis jointly, and on every trial,
except as otherwise stated, judgment was
jointly rendered against ail of the defend-
ants, and the defense npon all the trials was
jointly made by all of the defendants. The
case was first tried in DBenton county, and
resulted in a dlsagreement of the jury. On
the second trial, in the same county, the
verdict was for plainfiff and against all of
the defendants. This verdiet having been
sei aside, the third trial was had in Clinton
county, resulting in a verdict for plainiifl
and against all of the defendants. This ver-
dict was set aside, and a fourth trial had in
the district court of DBlackhawk county,
wherein & verdict was rendered for plaindff
and against all of the defendants.  On ap-
peal to this court the cise was reversed.
17 N. W. 34. Therenfier the cause was tried
the fifth time, and in the circult court of
Blackhawl county, and resulted In a verdict
for plaintiff and sgainst all of the defend-
ants., On appeal to thiz court the judgment
was reversed, and the sixth trlal of the

REPORTINR, Voi. 61,

{(fown.

case was had 1o the district court of Biack-
hawk county. 29 N. W. T43. Upon this
trial the jury were directed to find for the
defendant Flerman Kellar, They returned
a verdict for plaintifl and against all of the
defendants except Hefman Kellar for $1,000,
and found for the defendant Ielinr. The
defendants other than Kellar filed a motion
in arrest of judgment and fov judgment
against tho plaintiff on the ground that the
special findings were in conflict with the
general verdiet. Both motions were over-
ruled, and judgment rendered aguinst all of
the defendants except Kellar for the fuli
amount of the verdict. Thereafter ali of
the defendants except Keilar appealed to
this court, and the judgmenlt below was
afirmed. 47 N. W. 903. No appeal or ex-
ception was talen Dby plalntiif to the In-
struction of the court dirccling a verdict for
ellar., Thereafter the widow and Leirs
at law of Kellar made a showing of his
deatl, that no administrator of hig estate
had been appolnted, and asked to be sub-
stituted in- bis place as partes, and that
judgment be vendered In thelr favor against
piaintiff on the general verdiet dismissing
ihe action, and for costs of said Isellar
Therenfter all of the other defendants fited
a motlon asking the court to apportion the
costs so that they should only be liable for
six-zevenths of all costs whick piainliE
wonld hiave Leen enditled to recovey had he
recovered a judgment against all of the de-
fendants In ibe action, Plainliff made o
showing iu resistance of said motlon that de-
fepdaits answered jointly, with the same ot
torneys, and jointly assumed the barden and
pxpense of the defense, and that plaintiff
was soccessful in the action. Attaclied
thereto was an nffidavit of plaintiff to the
offect that the only evidence applicable alone
to defendant Kellar, and not necessary in
ihe trial of the case as against the other de-
fondants, was the tesiimony of one Par-
gons, who had been o withess upon all of the

{rials except the last, when he was sub-

poenaed, but for some cause unknown to
plaintiff failed to attend, being abseat from
home; that the only costs made solely on
account of Kellar were cosis of gervice of
the original notice upon him, and scrvice of
the subpoena on Parsens, and nis fees and
milenge ag o wiiness; that Iellar had no
wwitnesses, except himself, whose testimony
was applicabie alone to his defense; that
Kellar dled six months nftef ke last trial
The court overruled the motlon, to which
defendants excepted. Therenlfer judgment
was entered in favor of plnintiff and agninst
the six defendants other than Ieliar for the
fuli amount of the costs in said action, be-
ing $2,586.84, te which action of tho court
gnid six defendants excepted, and now ap-
peal.

2. The only question Involved In this appeal
1s the ruling of the court below on the motlon
to apportion the costs. The appeliants rely
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upon the following sectlon of thestatute: “In
actlens where there are sceveral plaiutiffs or
several defendants the costs shali be appor-
tioned according to the several judgmentsren-
dered, and when there are several causes of
action embraced in the same petifion, or sev-
eral issues, the plaintiff shall recover costs
upon the issues determined in his favor, and
the defendant shall recover costs upon the
issucs determined in Lis favor. Code, §
2934, The contentlon is that under the first

~elause of this section it was mandatory up-

on the distriet court to apportion. the costs
a8 asked. This particular provision of the
statute hag never been construed. Suppose
plaintiff had recovered against one only of
the seven alleged wrongdoers, on appellant’s
construetion of the statute he wouid only
be entitled fo a judgment for one-seventh
of the costs ag against him, although plain-
tiff had been successful In his action. Sure-
Iy no constructlon should be placed upon ke
statute which would work such an inequita-
ble result, unless its wordlng reguires It,
or such was the manifest Intent of the leg-
islature in its enceciment. We sce no reason
for so construing it. These seven partles
were charged with having commitied a
wrong against the plaintiff, ‘The jury found
that as to six of thein fhe charge was estab-
lished, but the seventh man was not liable,
Why should the latter fact operate to relieve
the other six from the payment of ope-sev-
enth of the costs incurred In the actlon
brought against them all for one cause, angd
to which all of the seven made a joint de-
fenso? The slx are In no way prejudiced
by the fact that as against a seventh de-
fendsant there was no recovery had, except
possibly by Deing' required to pay costs
which were made only in prosecuting the
case a8 against the seventh man. What
portlon of fhe costs were thus made, if any,
does not appear, This was not a case com-
ing within this provision of the statute. It
wag not a case of separaie judgments i
favor of the plaintiff and against all of the
defendants. It was simply a c¢ase where
several were sued, and a recovery had as to
all but one of themy,—a Jfoint verdict and
judgment as against all ag to whom plain-
tiff recovered nt all. It separate Judgments
had been recovered against the parties In
different amoeunts, there might be somne rea-
son for claiming {hat the costs should be
apportioned in a proper case. We do not
think the statute bears the construction con-
tended for. The motlon was properly over-
ruled, and the judgment belew is aflirmed.

(82 Iowa, 714}
CALKINS v. CHICAGQ, M, & 8T. P. RY,
CO.

(Supreme Court of Iowa. Dee. 15, 1854.)

APPEAY—ASSIGEMENT OF ERroRs —DIiBECTING
Vrnrnicen
1. Where plaintiff, who was injured in
coupling cars, was asked if he would have pull-

ed the pin and put it in the engine, and replied,
“No, sir; I would not, for there was no Huk in
the engine,” the latter clause of the reply was
properly siricken out as irresponsive.

2. The ruling cut of an explanatory answer
to a quostion was not prejudicial, where an ex-
planation had been previously given.

3. Under Code, § 3207, requiring an assign-
ment of errer {0 point out the very error ob-
jected to, where it is impossible to know what
particular crror is relied upon, except by resort
to t'éze argument, the assignment is not sufii-
cient,

. 4, Where the petition charged negligence
in that after plainGiif had gone between the
tender and the car, and taken hold of the Iink
to make a coupling, the engine hralkes were re-
leased, causing the engine to back down violent-
Iy and injure plaintiff, and plaintifl testificd that
he could not tell whether, between the time he
tgok hold o'f the link and the geeident, the en-
gineer applied or relensed the brake,—such be-
ing the only evidence on _the question,—a ver-
dict was properly directed for defendant,

Appeal from district courf, Linn county; J.
11, Treston, Judge.

Action for damages for a personal injury.
Verdict and judgment for defendant, Plain.
tiff appeals.  Alirmed.

Thompson & Stuart, for appeliant. Mills &
Keeler, for appellee,

KINNIZ, J. 1. The petitlon charges that
while plaintifl entered batween tiie tender of
the lecumotive and a freight car te couple
them together, and while he wag in thie act
of making said coupling, and without any
negligence on liig part, “the enginecr in chiarge
of sald engine, carelessly and reeklessly, and
without any warning to plaintiff, sufferod ihe
brakes of said engine to become suddenly de-
taclicd from the wheels, and in consequence
thereof said engine and tender were permit-
ted to back down with great fovee and vie-
lenee, by reason of which plaintifl was eaught
by the right hand hetweoen the dranght irons
ol said tender and cear, and three of his fingars
on sald hand mashed” so that they had to bo
and were amputated. Defendant admitied
that plaintiff was in its employ as a brake.
man, as elaimed, and that he received coerfain
injuries to his right hand, and denied ali oth-
er allegations of thepetition, At the ¢lese of
the evidenee, and on motion of defendant, thae
court direeted the jury to find a verdict for the
defendant, which was done, and a judgment
was entered thercon.

2. It appears that on the night of April 22,
1862; plaintiff was the head brakeman upon
a Treight train on defendant's road which was
golnpg up a steep grade ealled “Haysville
LI just south of the stalion of that numa,
When the train stepped, plainlifl went back,
et off cight cars, and the englne pulled thom
fnto aysville. After setting these ears out,
the conductor remained at the sywiteh, while
plaintiff went bacl, with the engine, to get the
remainder of the train, In backing down,
steam wag shut off when the engine got upon
the grade, and it moved by its own momen.
tum, checked occasionally by ihe air brakes,
and came to a full stop about 10 feet away
from the cars standing upon the grado.



